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Defendant.

EASTERN DIVISION
No. EDCV 16-01166-DSF(KKX)

NOTICE OF RENEWED MOTION FOR
SUMMARY JUDGMENT ; MEMORANDUM OF
POINTS AND AUTHORITIES;
DECLARATION OF FRANK D. KORTUM

DATE: February 13, 2017

TIME: 1:30 p.m.

COURTROOM: D, 7t Floor First
Street Courthouse

DAVID SCOTESE

Claimant.

TRIAL DATE: Not set

[Proposed] Statement of
Uncontroverted Facts and
Conclusions of Law Lodged
Concurrently Herewith




© 00 N o o A~ W N P

N N N N N N N NN R P R R R R B Rp R R
o N o oo A WN P O ©W 0o N oo o0 WOWDN B O

=

Tase 5:16-cv-01166-DSF-KK Document 39 Filed 01/12/17 Page 2 of 18 Page ID #:379

TO ALL PARTIES AND THEIR COUNSEL OF RECORD:

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on February 13, 2017, plaintiff United
States of America (the “government”) will and does move for Summary
Judgment. The motion will be heard at 1:30 p.m. in Courtroom D on
the 7th floor of the 1lst Street Federal Courthouse, 350 West 1st
Street, Los Angeles; California, before the Hon. Dale S. Fischer,
United States District Judge.

The government, by and through i1ts undersigned counsel,
respectfully moves this Court to grant summary judgment in its favor
pursuant to Rule 56 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure on the
ground that the undisputed facts establish as a matter of law that
the Defendant currency constitutes proceeds of, or was otherwise
involved In, one or more transactions conducted in violation of 18
U.S.C. 8 1960, and i1s therefore forfeitable pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 8
981(a)(1)(A) and (C). This motion is based on the attached
Memorandum of Points and Authorities, the Verified Amended Complaint
on file In this case, the Proposed Statement of Uncontroverted Facts
and Conclusions of Law lodged concurrently herewith, and upon such
other and further arguments, documents and grounds as the Court may
wish to consider at the hearing on this motion.

The government previously moved for summary judgment on October
17, 2016. Dkt. 24. Scotese opposed the motion. Dkt. 25. After the
government filed a reply (Dkt. 29), Scotese filed an unauthroized
sur-reply. Dkt. 30. Pursuant to a stipulation approved by the
Court, the government filed a response to the sur-reply. Dkt. 34.
On November 29, 2016, this Court denied the government’s motion for

summary judgment “without prejudice to a renewed motion and new
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briefing” so that Scotese would have a “fair opportunity to respond
to the arguments only raised In the government”’s most recent brief.”
Dkt. 36. Accordingly, the arguments raised in the government’s
response to Scotese’s sur-reply (the government’s “most recent
brief”) are now included iIn the accompanying Memorandum of Points and
Authorities.

Because claimant Scotese i1s not represented by counsel the pre-
motion meeting requirement of Local Rule 7-3 does not apply to this
motion.1 Nevertheless, iIn the interests of exploring the informal
resolution of this motion, counsel for the government discussed the

substance of this motion with Scotese on December 5, 2016.

Dated: January 12, 2017 Respectfully submitted,

EILEEN M. DECKER

United States Attorney

LAWRENCE S. MIDDLETON

Assistant United States Attorney
Chief, Criminal Division
Assistant United States Attorney
STEVEN R. WELK

Assistant United States Attorney
Chief, Asset Forfeiture Section

/s/ Frank Kortum
FRANK D. KORTUM
Assistant United States Attorney
Asset Forfeiture Section

Attorneys for Plaintiff
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

1 Local Rule 7-3 requires counsel contemplating the filing of a
motion to meet with *““opposing counsel,” which by definition excludes
parties not represented by counsel.

3
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MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

l. STATEMENT OF FACTS

This civil forfeiture action arises out of the seizure of
$15,000 in currency by the United States Postal Inspection Service.
For the purpose of this motion, the government sets forth In a

footnote the facts relating to the seizure of the currency,? so that

2 On January 13, 2016, a USPIS Postal Inspector was monitoring
parcels being processed through the Redlands Sorting Facility. The
Postal Inspector selected one of the parcels for further examination.
The label on the selected parcel indicated that the sender (Woodie
Ochle) had mailed the parcel from Atlanta, Georgia and addressed it
to David Scotese at an address iIn Murrieta, California. The address
information on the parcel’s mailing label had been filled in by hand
and the mailing charges had been paid in cash. Further investigation
revealed that neither Ochle nor Scotese was associated with either of
the addresses appearing on the parcel’s mailing label. A trained
narcotics detection canine, ‘“Chewy,” alerted to the parcel,
indicating that the parcel contained a controlled substance or had
recently been in contact with a controlled substance. Verified
Complaint § 8. Based on this evidence, a United States Magistrate
Judge in this District issued a warrant on January 20, 2016, to
search the parcel. The parcel, when opened, was found to contain
three Priority Express Mail flat-rate envelopes. The envelopes were
“nested” (i.e., the First envelope contained the second envelope,
which in turn contained the third envelope). Within the iInner-most
envelope the Postal Inspector found three bundles of U.S. Currency,
each of which had been wrapped with rubber bands. Neither the parcel
nor the envelopes contained a letter, note, or other written
documentation. The currency, when counted, totaled $15,000.00,
consisting mainly of $20 bills (the defendant currency). Verified
Complaint § 9.

It was subsequently learned that when Ochle mailed the parcel
containing the defendant currency, he was a subject of a drug
trafficking investigation. The iInvestigation led to Ochle’s arrest
in April of 2016 on drug-related charges in Florida. The State of
Florida subsequently charged Ochle with trafficking in controlled
substances, including methamphetamine. The criminal charges against
Ochle remain pending. Verified Complaint  10.

Based on the above evidence, the government filed a civil
forfeiture complaint against the defendant currency on June 3, 2016.
The complaint alleges that the defendant currency represents or is
traceable to proceeds of illegal narcotics trafficking, or was
intended to be used In one or more exchanges for a controlled
substance or listed chemical, in violation of 21 U.S.C. § 841 et seq.

Footnote Cont”’d on Next Page
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the Court may focus i1ts attention on later-discovered evidence that
supports summary judgment here. Specifically, claimant Scotese
asserted In a discovery response that his interest in the defendant
currency arose when he sent 32 bitcoins (a form of virtual currency)
to Woodie Ochle i1n exchange for the defendant currency.3 Kortum
Decl. T 2 & Exh. “A” at p. 4:20-22 (response to Special Interrogatory
No. 3).

Because at the time of the transaction described above Ochle was
the subject of a drug trafficking investigation that led to his
arrest in April of 2016 (Verified Complaint § 10), and because
bitcoin transactions are often associated with similar criminal

activity,4 the government served further discovery on Scotese to

and the defendant currency is therefore subject to forfeiture
pursuant to 21 U.S.C. 8 881(a)(6)-. Verified Complaint f 11. Scotese
served a claim that this Court (at the request of the government)
deemed filed on July 11, 2016. Dkt. 15.

The government does not base this summary judgment motion on the
allegation that the defendant currency is proceeds of a transaction
in a controlled substance. Ochle, the person who sent the defendant
currency to Scotese, i1s still a defendant in the related criminal
case referenced in the complaint. Depending on how much progress is
made in that case, It may be necessary to seek a stay of discovery to
prevent Scotese from interfering with the criminal case by conducting
discovery on issues such as whether Ochle was a drug dealer. See 18
U.S.C. 8 981(g)(requiring stay of civil forfeiture case if discovery
would prejudice a pending criminal case).

3 Scotese himself has served (and the government has responded
to) 19 interrogatories and nine requests for admissions. Kortum Decl.
1M 6-7 & Exhs. “E” & “F”’. Several of Scotese’s discovery requests
were offensive in nature and/or sought irrelevant information. For
example, Scotese’s fTirst interrogatory asked whether the government
“pay[s] the salaries of judges Dale S. Fischer and Kenly Kiya Kato.”
Kortum Decl. f 6 & Exh. “E” at p.2:27-28.

4 Virtual currencies such as bitcoin “attract|[] criminals who
value few things more than being allowed to operate in the shadows.”
Conor Desmond, Bitcoins: Hacker Cash or the Next Global Currency?,
19 Pub. Int. L. Rep. 30, 34 (2013)(quoting letter from Senators
Carper and Coburn); see also Benjamin Lo, Fatal Fragments: The

Footnote Cont’d on Next Page
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determine i1f, in transmitting the bitcoin to Ochle, he was operating
an unlicensed money transmitting business, or whether he had instead
registered his business (as required by law) with the Financial
Crimes Enforcement Network (““FInCEN”) of the United States Treasury
Department.®> In Scotese’s verified response to the government’s
request for documents reflecting his registration of his bitcoin
exchange business with FInCEN, he affirmatively stated that “if 1
remember correctly, | have not made any such registration” (id. 5 &
Exh. “D” at p. 7:20-22), and he failed to provide any documents
reflecting that he had done so0.6

Scotese also made statements i1n discovery demonstrating that he
considered his bitcoin exchanges to be a business activity.
Specifically,

- Scotese’s discovery responses confirm statements appearing
on one of his websites about how to make money from
bitcoins. Kortum Decl. 1Y 3-4 & Exhs. “B” (Requests for
Admissions) & “C” (Response to Requests for Admissions).
For example, Scotese confirmed his website statement that

“[d]ealing bitcoin supports my life and family.””

Effect of Money Transmission Regulation on Payments Innovation, 18
Yale J. L. & Tech. 111, 124 (2016)(noting the potential of bitcoin
transactions to be “associated with criminal activity.”).

5 See 31 U.S.C. § 312(a)(7) FInCEN “a bureau of the Department
of the Treasury.”

6 Scotese verified the response under penalty of perjury. Exh.
“D” at p. 8.

7 This statement appears on Exhibit “A” to the Requests for
Admissions (which are iIn turn attached hereto as Exhibit “B”).
Scotese acknowledged that he made the statements and that they were
accurate. Exh. “C” at p. 1-2 (response to RFA Nos. 1-2).
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- Another website referenced In Scotese’s discovery responses
contains his schedule of bitcoin exchange rates and
states that Scotese has made over 3,000 confirmed trades
with “1,499 different partners.” Kortum Decl. 8 & Exh.
“G”.8  Comments from ““users with noticeable trade volume”
(Exh. “G” at p. 3) regarding the quality of the Scotese’s
bitcoin exchange service also appear iIn the feedback section
of this website (id. T 9 & Exh. “H”), suggesting that these
exchanges are properly characterized as business activities.

- Scotese sent a letter to a Postal Service employee in
connection with the seizure of the defendant currency. In
the letter Scotese stated that “l1 sell a lot of bitcoin in
return for cash . . .” and suggested that doing business
unofficially with the employee “might prove valuable to me
in the future.” 1d. 9 10 Exh. “17.

Based on the evidence above, the government filed a motion on
October 13, 2016, for leave to amend its complaint to allege that the
defendant currency was subject to forfeirture on the additional ground
that that i1t was the proceeds of Scotese’s operation of an unlicensed
money transmitting business. Dkt. 21. On November 29, 2016, this
Court granted the motion for leave to amend. Dkt. 36. On November
30, 2016, the government filed i1ts amended complaint. Dkt. 37. The
amended complaint alleges that the defendant currency constitutes
proceeds of, or was otherwise involved in, one or more transactions

conducted in violation of 18 U.S.C. 8§ 1960, and is therefore

8 Scotese cited the website In his response to the government’s
request for production of documents. Exh. “D” at p. 5:25 (citing
https://localbitcoins.com/accounts/profile/dscotese/).



https://localbitcoins.com/accounts/profile/dscotese/
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forfeitable pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 981(a)(1)(A) and (C). Id. T 13.

I1. THIS COURT SHOULD GRANT THE GOVERNMENT?S MOTION FOR SUMMARY
JUDGMENT

A The Summary Judgment Standard

Federal Rule of Civil Procedure 56(a) authorizes the granting of
summary judgment “if the movant shows that there is no genuine
dispute as to any material fact and the movant is entitled to
judgment as a matter of law.” The movant bears the initial burden of
establishing “the basis for i1ts motion, and identifying those
portions of “the pleadings, depositions, answers to interrogatories
and admissions on file, together with the affidavits, 1t any,” which
it believes demonstrate the absence of a genuine i1ssue of material

fact.” Celotex Corp. v. Catrett, 477 U.S. 317, 323 (1986) (quoting

former Fed. R. Civ. P. 56(c)).

To meet i1ts burden of production, the moving party must either
produce evidence negating an essential element of the nonmoving
party’s claim or defense or show that the nonmoving party does not
have enough evidence of an essential element to carry its ultimate

burden of persuasion at trial. Nissan Fire and Marine Insurance

Company, Ltd. v. Fritz Cos., 210 F.3d 1099, 1102 (9th Cir. 2000).

Documents produced in discovery and admissions made during discovery
will support a summary judgment motion. Fed.R.Civ.P. 56(c)(1)(A)
(“materials in the record” that will support summary judgment include

“documents” and “admissions™) .9

9 Summary judgment is appropriate at this time because even
though this litigation is at a relatively early stage, Scotese has
already conducted extensive discovery. Specifically, the government
has already responded to 19 interrogatories and 10 requests for
admission. Kortum Decl. 1 6-7 & Exhs. “E” & “F”. The objectionable

Footnote Cont’d on Next Page
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Once the moving party meets i1ts initial burden of showing there
IS no genuine issue of material fact, the opposing party has the
burden of producing competent evidence and cannot rely on mere

allegations or denials in the pleadings. Matsushita Electric

Industries Co. v. Zenith Radio Corp., 475 U.S. 574, 587 (1986).

There 1s no genuine issue for trial where the record taken as a whole
could not lead a rational trier of fact to find for the nonmoving
party.

B. The Burden of Proof

In a suit or action brought under “any civil forfeiture statute”
for the civil forfeiture of any property, “the burden of proof iIs on
the Government to establish, by a preponderance of the evidence that
the property is subject to forfeiture . . . .” 18 U.S.C. §
983(c)(1). To satisfy i1ts burden, the government may use evidence
“gathered after the filing of the complaint for forfeiture to
establish, by a preponderance of the evidence that property is
subject to forfeiture . . . .7 18 U.S.C. 8 983(c)(2).

C. The Court Should Order the Forfeiture of the Defendant
currency

Federal law prohibits the operation of an unlicensed money
transmitting business. 18 U.S.C. § 1960. “Money transmitting” 1is
statutorily defined as “transferring funds on behalf of the public by
any and all means. . .” 18 U.S.C. 8 1960(b)(2) (emphasis added).

An “unlicensed money transmitting business” is statutorily defined as

and offensive nature of much of Scotese’s discovery (as discussed iIn
Note 3, supra), suggests that allowing him to conduct further discovery
would serve no useful purpose.
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a money transmitting business that “fails to comply with the money
transmitting business registration requirements under section 5330 of
[T]itle 31, United States Code, or regulations prescribed under such
section.” 18 U.S.C. § 1960(b)(1)(B). 31 U.S.C. 8 5330 in turn
defines a “money transmitting business” as one that
- provides a ‘“currency exchange” or “engages as a business iIn
the transmission of funds”;
- “1s required to file reports under 31 U.S.C. § 5313”;10 and
- “Is not a depository institution (as defined in section
5313(g).”
31 U.S.C. 8 5330(d)(1). In this regard, an “exchanger” Is “a person
engaged as a business in the exchange of virtual currency for real
currency, funds, or other virtual currency.” FINnCEN Guidance No.
FIN-2013-G001 (March 18, 2013) at p. 2 (“Virtual Currency Guidance™)
(copy attached as Exh. “J7).11
Treasury Department regulations issued pursuant to Section 5330
require money transmitting businesses to register with FinCEN.

United States v. E-Gold, Ltd., 550 F.Supp.2d 82, 96 (D.D.C. 2008);

accord United States v. Budovsky, No. 13cr368 (DCL), 2015 WL 5602853

at *7 (S.D_N.Y Sept. 23, 2015).12 Congress enacted Section 5330°s

10 The regulation implementing Section 5313 provides that
transactions exceeding $10,000 must be “report[ed] to the government
.7 United States v. Wetselaar, No. 2:11-cr-00347-KJD-CWH, 2015
WL 10734178 at *2 n.3 (D. Nev. Dec. 1, 2015)(citing 31 C.F.R.
1010.311).

11 FinCEN”s Virtual Currency Guidance is officially entitled
“Application of FInCEN”s Regulations to Persons Administering,
Exchanging or Using Virtual Currencies” and is available at
https://www.fincen.gov/sites/default/files/shared/FIN-2013-G001.pdf.
The Guidance 1s cited i1n United States v. 50.44 Bitcoins, Civil
Action No. ELH-15-3692, 2016 WL 3049166 at *1 (D. Md. May 31, 2016).

12 The regulations cited in Budovsky are renumbered versions of
the regulations cited in E-Gold.

10
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registration requirement to assist law enforcement agencies In their
efforts to “prevent . . . money transmitting businesses from engaging

in i1llegal activities.” E-Gold, supra, 550 F.Supp.2d at 96 (quoting

legislative history).13

Scotese’s conduct falls well within the statutory definitions of
“money transmitting” set forth in both 18 U.S.C. 8§ 1960 and 31 U.S.C.
8§ 5330. First, his conduct falls within the definition set forth iIn
Section 1960 because Scotese caused Ochle to transmit currency to him
in exchange for Scotese’s transmission of bitcoin to Ochle. Such
conduct constitutes “transferring funds” within the meaning of
Section 1960(b)(2).

Second, Scotese’s conduct falls within the definition of “money
transmitting” set forth in 31 U.S.C. 8§ 5330. Specifically,

— Scotese provided a ‘“currency exchange” service within the
meaning of Section 5330(d)(1). For example, as discussed
above, he posted bitcoin exchange rates on one of his
websites. Kortum Decl. § 8 & Exh. “G” at p. 2-3. He also

stated that “lI sell a lot of bitcoin in return for cash . .

13 The legislative history for Section 5330 specifically states:

It is the purpose of this section to establish a registration
requirement for businesses engaged in providing check cashing,
currency exchange, or money transmitting or remittance services,
or issuing or redeeming money orders, travelers®™ checks, and
other similar instruments to assist the Secretary of the
Treasury, the Attorney General, and other supervisory and law
enforcement agencies to effectively enforce the criminal, tax,
and regulatory laws and prevent such money transmitting
businesses from engaging in illegal activities.

E-Gold, supra, 550 F.Supp.2d at 96 (emphasis omitted)(quoting 140
Cong. Rec. 6642, 6666 (1994)).

11
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. - Id. T 10 & Exh. “1”.14 Scotese also “engaged as a
business in the transmission of funds” within the meaning of
Section 5330(d)(1)(A). Under Section 5330°’s implementing
regulations the element of “transmission” is satisfied by a
transfer to “another location or person by any means.” 31
C.F.R. 8§ 1010.100(fF)(5) (1) (emphasis added).1> FInCEN’s
Virtual Currency Guidance makes clear that when an exchanger
or administrator of virtual currency accepts real currency
from an individual and in exchange sends “value that
substitutes for currency” (i.e., bitcoin) to the electronic
account of that individual, “transmission [has occurred] to

another location.” Virtual Currency Guidance at 4.16

14 The courts recognize that bitcoin is a form of currency. See,
e.g., 50.44 Bitcoins, supra, 2016 WL 3049166 at *2 (bitcoin is
“virtual currency”).

“Bitcoin is an electronic form of currency unbacked by any real
asset and without specie, such as coin or precious metal.” Sec.
& Exch. Comm®"n v. Shavers, No. 4:13-CV-416, 2013 WL 4028182, at
*1 (E.D. Tex. Aug. 6, 2013). “Bitcoin can be easily purchased in
exchange for ordinary currency, acts as a denominator of value,
and is used to conduct financial transactions.” United States
v. Faiella, 39 F. Supp. 3d 544, 545 (S.D.N.Y. 2014).
50.44 Birtcoins, supra, 2016 WL 3049166 at *2 n.1.

15 31 C.F.R. 8 1010.100 is a regulation promulgated pursuant to
31 U.S.C. 8 5330. Budovski, supra, 2015 WL 5602853 at *5.

16 The quoted section of the Virtual Currency Guidance appears
under a subsection entitled “Centralized Virtual Currencies.” The
principle that ““another location” may be an individual’s account (for
the purposes of defining money transmission’) applies equally to
decentralized currencies such as bitcoin, which are also held in
accounts. As the court explained in S.E.C. v. Shavers, No. 4:13-CV-
416, 2014 WL 4652121 (E.D. Tex., Sept. 18, 2014):

Bitcoins are held at, and sent to and from, bitcoin “addresses.’

A bitcoin “wallet” is a software file that holds bitcoin

addresses. Along with each bitcoin address, a bitcoin wallet

stores the “private key’ for the address, essentially a password

used by the holder to access the bitcoins held at the address,

as well as the transaction history associated with the address.
Footnote Cont”’d on Next Page

12
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Furthermore, “[a]n administrator or exchanger [of virtual
currency] that . . . transmits . . . or . . . buys and sells
convertible virtual currency for any reason Is a money
transmitter under FInCEN’s regulations . . . .7 Id. at p.
3 (emphasis added).

Scotese was “required to file reports under Section 5313~
within the meaning of Section 5330(d)(1)(B) because the
transaction at issue here involved more than $10,000.
Specifically, Scotese admitted that he received $15,000 from
Ochle, and 1n exchange sent bitcoin of comparable value to
Ochle. Exh. “A” at p. 5. Scotese’s transmission of bitcoin
to Ochle thus constituted a “money transmission” to another
location that Scotese was required to report pursuant to 31
U.S.C. 8 5313 (which requires the reporting of transactions
in excess of $10,000 pursuant to the implementing
regulations cited above). See 31 U.S.C. § 5330(d)(1)(B); 31
C.F.R. 1010.311.

Scotese 1s not a “depository institution” within the meaning

of 31 U.S.C. § 5330(d)(1)(C).-

Because all three elements of Section 5330(d)(1) are satisfied

here, Scotese was required under 18 U.S.C. 8 1960 to register with

Whoever has the private key for a bitcoin address controls the
bitcoins held at that address.

Id. at *1; accord 50.44 Bitcoins, supra, 2016 WL 3049166 at *2 n.4;
see generally United States v. American Express Co., 88 F.Supp.3d

143, 190 (S.D. N.Y. 2015)(electronic wallets are a form of account),
rev’d on other grounds, 838 F.3d 179 (2d Cir. 2016).

13




© 00 N o o A~ W N P

N N N N N N N NN R P R R R R B Rp R R
o N o oo A WN P O ©W 0o N oo o0 WOWDN B O

ase 5:16-cv-01166-DSF-KK Document 39 Filed 01/12/17 Page 17 of 18 Page ID #:394

FINCEN.17 His failure to do so subjects the defendant currency to
forfeiture as proceeds of a transaction in violation of 18 U.S.C. 8§

1960.18 18 U.S.C. §8 981(a)(1)(C); 50.44 Bitcoins, supra, 2016 WL

3049166 at *2. This Court should therefore grant the government’s
motion for summary judgment.
//7/

/77

/77

17 When given the opportunity to do so, Scotese failed to
produce documents that would establish that he registered as a
bitcoin exchanger with FInCEN (or any other government agency).
Kortum Decl. T 5 & Exh. “D”. Most significantly, his affirmative
statement that he has no recollection of registering his bitcoin
exchange with any government agency (Exh. “D” at p. 7:20-22)
constitutes an admission that he violated 18 U.S.C. 8 1960. (The
government respectfully suggests that had Scotese iIn fact registered
as a bitcoin exchanger with FInCEN he could have produced documentary
proof of that event, either in the form of registration documents
that he submitted to FiIinCEN, or in the form of proof or
acknowledgement of registration that he would have received from
FInCEN.)

18 18 U.S.C. 8 1960 i1s a “general intent crime for which a
defendant is liable i1f he knowingly operates a money transmitting
business.” United States v. Dimitrov, 546 F.3d 409, 413 (7th Cir.
2008). The government therefore need not prove that Scotese “knew
about the federal registration requirements . . . .” See id.; accord
United States v. Talebnejad, 460 F.3d 563, 568 (4th Cir. 2006).

14
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111. CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, this Court should grant the

government’s motion for summary judgment.

Dated: January 12, 2017

Respectfully submitted,

EILEEN M. DECKER

United States Attorney

LAWRENCE S. MIDDLETON

Assistant United States Attorney
Chief, Criminal Division

STEVEN R. WELK

Assistant United States Attorney
Chief, Asset Forfeiture Section

/s/ Frank Kortum
FRANK D. KORTUM
Assistant United States Attorney

Attorneys for Plaintiff
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
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DECLARATION OF FRANK KORTUM

I, Frank D. Kortum hereby declare and state as follows:
1. I am an Assistant United States Attorney to the civil

forfeiture case entitled U.S. v. $15,000.00 in U.S. Currency, EDCV

16-01166-DSF(KKx). I have personal knowledge of the facts set forth
in this Declaration and if necessary could competently testify
thereto under oath.

2. Attached hereto as Exhibit “A” 1s a copy of claimant
Scotese’s responses to the government’s First Set of Special
Interrogatories.

3. Attached hereto as Exhibit “B” 1s a copy of a set of
Requests for Admission served on claimant Scotese.

4. Attached hereto as Exhibit “C” 1s a copy of claimant
Scotese’s responses to the government’s Requests for Admissions.

5. Attached hereto as Exhibit “D” 1s a copy of claimant
Scotese’s response to the government’s document production request.

6. Attached hereto as Exhibit “E” 1s a copy of the
government’s response to interrogatories served by claimant Scotese.

7. Attached hereto as Exhibit “F” 1s a copy of the
government’s response to requests for admissions served by claimant
Scotese.

8. Attached hereto as Exhibit “G” 1s a copy of an online
profile of claimant David Scotese (‘““Scotese”), found at

https://localbitcoins.com/accounts/profile/dscotese/. The profile 1is

referenced at page 5:25 iIn Scotese’s verified response to the
government’s request for production of documents (a copy of which is
attached hereto as Exhibit “D”).

9. Attached hereto as Exhibit “H” 1s a copy of the feedback

16



https://localbitcoins.com/accounts/profile/dscotese/

© 00 N o o A~ W N P

N N N N N N N NN R P R R R R B Rp R R
o N o oo A WN P O ©W 0o N oo o0 WOWDN B O

fan

lase 5:16-cv-01166-DSF-KK Document 39-1 Filed 01/12/17 Page 2 of 2 Page ID #:397

section of the website referenced in the preceding paragraph.

10. Attached hereto as Exhibit “I1” 1s a letter received from
Scotese In 2016.

I declare under penalty of perjury, under the laws of the United
States of America, that to the best of my knowledge, the foregoing is
true and correct.

Executed on this 12 day of January, 2017 at Los Angeles,
California.

_/s/ Frank Kortum
Frank D. Kortum

17
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David Scotese

) Murrieta, CA 92563
Fax Number: NA

3l Email:

4 lipavid Scotese, IN PRO PER

S

6

7 UNLTED STATES DISTRICT COURT

8 FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

9 EASTERN DIVISION

10

11 | UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ) Case No.: CV 16-01166-DSF (KK)
)

12 ) CLAIMANT DAVID SCOTESE’S ANSWERS
) TO FIRST SET OF SPECIAL

13 Plaintiff, ) INTERROGATORLES
)

14 vs. )

n _ ) .

1511$15,000.00 IN U,8. CURRENCY, )
)

16 Defendant )
)

17 )
)

18 )
)

19

20

71 i| PROPOUNDING PARTY: PLAINTIFF UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

22 I RESPONDING PARTY: CLAIMANT DAVID SCOTESE

23 || SPECIAL INTERROGATORY NO. 1: “State your current and all prior
24 lnames, including aliases or nicknames, date and place of birth,

25 | gocial Security number, visa or green card number, marital status,
26 lnumber of children, all of your residentlal addresses and buginess
27 |addresses for the last five (5) years, current residential

28 |l telephone number(s), current business telephone number (s), current

al-
VERIFIED ANSWER TO FIRST SET OF SPECIAL INTERROGATORIES

(Y
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[y

cell phone number(s), current e-malil addresses, and the addresses
of any web gites or gocial networking sites maintained in your
name or on your behalf, If you own é buginesgs in whole or in part,
identify the business (including but not limited to the business
name, address and telephone number and the identitles of all co-
owners) and describe the nature of the business and its
organizational structure.”

Objection. This set of discovery relies on preliminary/intro-

ductory definitiong in violation of Code of Civil Procedure

[ o S T = T ¥ S A VI 8 )

—

gection 2030.060 subdivision (d). Objection. A party’s social

—
—

security number 1s “clearly irrelevant to the subject matter of

et
[

the action.” (Smith v. Superior Court of San Joaquin County (1961)

p—
W

189 Cal.App.2d 6, 9, 13, [1l Cal.Rptr. 165, 168, 170],) Subject to

ol
S

and wlthout waiving said objections, claimant responds as follows:

v

Claimant’s name is David James Scotese, Claimant was born in La

A pe——
~N

-
[

Murrieta, CA for wmost of the last five years and at 1975

—
o

Middlefield Drive in Riverside, CA before that, has no residential

»
<

or business phone number, but claimant’s cell phone number ig

NN NN N
(& -

N
(o8

The fdllowing websites are maintained in claimant’s name:

I
[o B

-2-

VERIFIED ANSWER TO FIRST SET OF SPECIAL INTERROGATORIES
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o

https://voluntaryist,liberty.me/

Claimant owns a sole proprietorship named David James Scotese

SPECIAL INTERROGATORY NO. 2: “If you have ever been arrested or

convicted of a corime in any country, please state the date of the
arrest or conviction, the charge(s), the name and address of the

court in which you were convicted, the offense you were charged

O & 3 A W LN

with or were convicted of, and the gentence or other outcome. If

e
(=]

probation was imposed, list the time period during which ydu_were

—
pr—

under probation and the name, address, and telephone number of

—
™

your probation officer. If you were incarcerated, list the

—
w

institution where you were incarcerated and the period of time

,_.
.;;

during which you were incarcerated. If you were paroled, list the

y—
wv

date of your parole and the name, address, and telephone number of

—
[o}

your parole officer. If you have been charged in a criminal case

oy
~

which is currently(bending before any court, please state the date

—
oo

of the arrest, the charge(s), the name and address of the court in

—
o

which you were charged, and provide the current status of the

N
<

court casge, including whether a guilty plea has been entered.”

»N
ey

Objection. This set of discovery relies on preliminary/intro-

N
[3+]

ductory definitions in violation of Code of Civil Procedure

N
W

gsection 2030.060 subdivision (d). Subject to and without waiving

N
5

sald objection, claimant responds as follows: Not applicable

N
wn

SPECIAL INTERROGATORY NO. 3: “State the extent and describe with

no
[#

particularity the nature of your interest in each defendant asset

N
~J

claimed by you in this action, and identify how you acquired that

8o
o

-3
VERIFIED ANSWER TO FIRST SET OF SPECIAL INTERROGATORIES
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—

interest. Your answer should include, but not be limited to, the
foilowing:,
a. The date(g), time, place and manner in which each defendant
asget claimed by you was obtained, including the names, address-
and telephone numbers of the person(s) from whom each defendant
asset was obtained.
b. the circumstances of each transaction by which you acquired

or obtained any interest in each defendant asset.

[V TR -"- T B - N ¥ B - VA

c. the reason(s) each defendant asset was obtained. and

—
(=

witnesses, including the names, addresseg, and telephone numbers

—
[om—y

of such witnesses, to any of the transactions by which each

—
~no

defendant agset was obtained.

—
w

d. a description of each and every document evidencing,

,._.
N

recording, ﬁacilitating, or otherwise relating to any

ot
w

transaction identified in response to Interrogatory No. 3(a)

—
)}

through (c¢) above.,”

Objection. This set of discovery relies on preliminary/intro-

—
o RS

ductory definitions in violation of Code of Civil Procedure

ot
=)

gection 2030.060 subdivision (d). Subject to and without waiving

D
o

gsaid objection, claimant responds as follows: On Tuegday, January

[V
b

12, 2016,1around 7 AM, claimant sent 32 bitcoins to a man known to

N
N

claimant as Woodie Ochle. Saild man then sent claimant an image of

nN
(883

what is called “SUBJECT PARCEL” through the cellular network using

_

number of the package containing the cash being sent to claimant

NN
[ RS, TR

to pay for the bitcoins. Claimant was at home at that time.

joe
~)

Claimant and Ochle are the only witnesses to the transaction as

[\
o

far ags claimant knows.

o4
VERIFIED ANSWER TO FIRST SET OF SPECIAL INTERROGATORIES
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[a—y

3.(d) Claimant’s cell phone containg text messages that show the
transaction described above. The publicly available “Blockchain”
contains the transaction showing that the 32 bitcoins were

transferred to the bitcoin address

that text message conversation. An email to Joseph Bennett sent
on Thu, Jan 28, 2016 at 1:18 PM contained a goreenshot of the

relevant part of that text message conversation. The webpage at

O o N O W A W

https://blockchain.info/address/1FsvaDipKKmJUHbDYpWiTGCGvdSsRZlAn

—
<

shows the transaction. The US Postal Service has records showing

e
pru—y

that the parcel was to be delivered to claimant, The Mall Center

—
N

& More at 39540 Murrieta Hot Springs Rd, Murrieta, CA 92563, Suite

—
w

219 has an agreement with claimant to provide box #32 to claimant

o
N

for an annual fee.

—
8]

geveral documents relating to the interception of claimant’s

—
=)

property by Joseph Bennett on behalf of the United States Postal

it
<3

|l Inspection Service also evidence the transaction degoribed above,

—
o0

including:

—
\le]

e the interrogatories being answered herein,

]
o

e a verified complaint for forfeiture in, the c¢ivil cover sheet for,

N
—

and a warrant to seize defendant in:

|
ro

o Case No, ED CV 16-01166,

e a notice of seizure dated February 9, 2016 about, and a response

NN
A~ W

dated March 8, 2016 to claimant's claim for:

[\
w

o Seilzure No 243-16-023, agset ID 16-USP-000679, and

o
(=

e a letter Ffrom Frank D. Kortum to Dave Scotege dated June 9, 2016

n
~J

There are most likely other documents evidencing, recording,

™o
(=~}

facilitating, or otherwise relating to the transaction identified

.5
VERIFIED ANSWER TO FIRST SET OF SPECIAL INTERROGATORIES
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1| above, which documents claimant cannot identify specifically

because he doesn’t have access to identifying information about
them.
SPECIAL INTERROGATORY NO. 4: “If you have any records, documents,

or tangible items that reflect or are relevant to your interest in
any or all of the defendant assets or your claim to said assets
(other than those identified in responge to special Interrogatory

No. 3), ldentify each piece of evidence with specificity,

o o] ~ -3 W oY w po

including the name. address and telephone number of its

10 ||custodian.” |

11 ||[objection. This set of discovery relies on preliminary/intro-
12 | ductory definitions in violation of Code of Civll Procedure

13 || gection 2030.060 subdivision (d). Subject to and without waiving

14 || said objection, claimant responds as follows: Joseph Bennett left
15 lclaimant a voicemail on January 28, 2016 requesting that claimant
16 |lcall him back because Michael Dawson, whom claimant had contacted
17 ||about the missing parcel, referred Mr. Bennett to claimant as the
18 | owner of a parcel that Mr. Bennett had intercepted. Mr. Bennett
119 llis also in possession of a letter claimant sent him in which

20 || claimant reiterated the fact that the parcel contained money that
21 ||belonged to claimant asg a payment for bitcoin, which fact claimant
22 fhad told him in a telephone conversation on January 28, 2016,

23 || Joseph Bennett’s telephone number and address are not known to

24 Il claimant but his work number 1s (909)386-1098 and the address to
25 lwhich the letter was sgent 1s PO Box 1684 San Bernardino, CA 92401,
26 || SPECIAL INTERROGATORY NO, 5:; “Ligt each and every source (other
27 | than those identified in response to Special Interrogatory No. 3)

28 || from which you claim that each defendant asset was derived. Your

-6- ,
VERIFIED ANSWER TO FIRST SET OF SPECIAL INTERROGATORIES
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1 lanswer should algo include: the date each defendant asset was
obtained, and from whom {name, residential address and telephone
number) each defendant asset was obtained and the reagon you
obtained each defendant aseet. Please identify each witness (by
name, address and telephone number) and each document (and the
name. address and telephone number of the custodian of the

document) that supports your answer.”

o N1 oy W W N

Objection. This get of discovery relies on preliminary/intro—

O

ductory definitions in violation of Code of Civil Procedure
" 10 section 2030.060 subdivision (d). Subject to and without waiving
11 || said objection, claimant responds as follows: No source other than
12 | woodie ochle is known to claimant.
13 || sPECTIAL INTERROGATORY NO. 6: “Lisgt any facts establishing your
14 |l ownership of each defendant asset (other than those identified in
15 reséonSe to Special Interrogatory No, 3).”
16 ||objection. This set of discovery relies on preliminary/intro-
17 | quctory definitions in violation of Code of Civil Procedure
18 || section 2030.060 subdivision (d). Subject to and without wailving
19 || said objection, claimant responds ag follows: All facte known to
20 l claimant establishing Claimaﬁt’s ownership of the defendant asset
21 ||are listed in item 3.
22 || SPECIAL INTERROGATORY NO. 7: “State the names and cuxrent
23 || residential addressges and telephone ( numbers of all persons known
24 || or believed by you to have knowledge of or information pertaining
25l to your alleéed ownefship of each defendant asset (other than
26 | those identified in response to Special Interrogatory No, 3), and
27 || summarize what information you believe they have pertaining to

28 || your alleged ownership of each defendant asset.”

.
VERIFIED ANSWER TO FIRST SET OF SPECIAL INTERROGATORIES
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1|lobjection. This set of discovery relies on prelininary/intro-

2 || ductory definitions in violation of Code of Civil Procedure

3 |l section 2030.060 gubdivision (d). Subject to and without walving
4 ||gaid objection, claimant responds as follows: All persons known or
5 {|believed by claimant to have knowledge of or information
6‘pertaining to claimant’s ownership of the defendant asset are

7| Listed in item 3.

8 || SPECTAL TNTERROGATORY NO. 8: “If any person or entity other than
9{lyou has an interest in any part of any defendant asset, please

10 || identify that person or entity. State the nature of that interest
11 land describe in detail how it arose.”

12 ||objection. This set of discovery relies dn preliminary/intro-

13 || ductory definitions in violation of Code of Civil procedure

14 || section 2030.060 subdivision (d). Subject to and without waiving
15 || said objection, claimant responds as follows: As a married man,

16 l c1laimant shares ownership of all assets with claimant’s wife,

17 | kKimberlee N. Scotese, a registered nurse. This shared 6wnership
18 | developed over their years together, having germinated on July 19,
19 || 1997 when they were wed, and coming into fullness only recently in
20 {la way that no legal gystem can oxr should comprehend.

21 | 8PECIAL INTERROGATORY NO. 9: “Please identify any (by title and
29 | docket number) any bankruptcy proceeding to which you are of have
23 lbeen a party within the last 10 years.”

24 |objection. This set of discovery relies on preliminary/intro-

25 | ductory definitions in violation of Code of Civil Procedure

26 | section 2030.060 subdivigion (d). Subject to and without waiving
27 | said objection, claimant responds as follows: Claimant ig not

28

-8~
VERIFIED ANSWER TO FIRST SET OF SPECIAL INTERROGATORIES
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1 |laware of any bankruptcy procaedinés to which claimant is or has

2 ||been a party in the last 10 years.

3 || SPECTAL INTERROGATORY NO, 10: “Please identify (by title and
docket number) any legal proceeding (including but not limited to
domestic relations proceedings) to which you are or have been a
party within the last 10 years and in which your ownership of any

defendant assget ig or was an lgsue.”

O 3 Y L B

Objection. This set of discovery relies on preliminary/intro-

o

ductory definitions in violation of Code of Civil Procedure

10 || section 2030,060 subdivision (d). Subject to and without waiving
11 || said objection, claimant responds as follows: Claimant is not and
12 |hag not been a party to any legal proceeding in the last ten years
13 |in which claimant’s ownership of any defendant asset was an ilssue.
14 || SPECIAL INTERROGATORY NO, 11: “If any defendant asset was the

15 lproceeds of a loan, or served as collateral for a loan, please

16 |describe the terms and purpose of the loan in detail, identify the
17 || Lender, identify all documents created in connection with the

18 [[loan; and describe the nature of the lender's interest in the

19 || defendant asset.”

20 | Objection. Thig set of discovery relies on preliminary/intro- .

21 |quctory definitions in violation of Code of Civil Procedure

22 section 2030.060 gubdivision (d). Subject to and without waiving
23 [l said objection, clalmant responds as follows: Not applicable.

24 || SPECIAL INTERROGATORY NO, 12: “Did you at any time disclaim

25 || ownership of any defendant asset? If so, please describe in detail
26 || the circumstances under which you digclaimed ownership, and

27 [[identify any documents you executed at or about the time you

28 |ldisclaimed ownership.”

-9.
VERIFIED ANSWER TO FIRST SET OF SPECIAL INTERROGATORIES
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| [[opjection. This set of discovery relies on preliminary/intro-
ductory definitions in violation of Code of Civil Procedure
gection 2030.060 subdivision (d). Subject to and without waiving
said objection, claimant responds as follows: Claimant never
disclaimed ownership of any defendant asset named in this case.
SPECTAI, INTERROGATORY NO. 13: “If you filed an income tax return

for the yearsg from 2010 through 2015, IDENTIFY and DOCUMENT the

co =~ O W A W N

years filed, and the name, address and tax identification number

O

used on each return, Complete and return the enclosed Tax

10 || Information Authorization.”

11 [[objection, This set of discovery relies on preliminary/intro-

12 [ ductory definitions in violation of Code of Civil Procedure

13 | section 2030.060 subdivision (d). Objection. Information regarding
14 || tax returns, including income tax returns, W-2 and/or 1099 forwms,
15| is privileged under federal and state law. (See Webb v. Standard
16 loil Co. (1957) 49 Cal.2d 509 [319 P.2d 621]; Brown V. Superior

17 I court (1977) 71 Cal.App.3d 141 [139 Cal.Rptr. 327]; Aday V.

18 || Superior Court (1961) 55 Cal.2d 789 [13 Cal .Rptr. 415]; Schnabel
19 || v. Supefior Court (1993) 5 Cal.ath 704 [21 Cal.Rptx.2d 200].)
20 || This privilege is to be broadly construed. (Sav-on Drugs, Inc. V.
21 || Superior Court (1975) 15 Cal,3d 1, 6-7 {123 Cal.Rptr. 283, 287]).)
22 || subject to and without waiving said objections, claimant regponds
23 las follows: Claimant filed an original and an amended federal tax
24 || return and an original state tax return for each of the years
25{|2010, 2011, and 2012, original federal and state tax returns in

26 {2013, and on July 9, 2016, claimant filed federal and state tax

27 | returns for 2014 and 2015 using the name David J Scotese and the

-+ | |

-10-
VERIFIED ANSWER TO FIRST SET OF SPECIAL INTERROGATORIES
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1 || SPECIAL INTERROGATORY NO. 14: “IDENTIFY all individuals, other

no

than counsel who assisted you in responding to these
interrogatories, specifying the answer with which they assisted.”
Objection. This set of discovery relies on preliminary/intro-
ductory definitions in vioclation of Code of Civil Procedure
section 2030.060 subdivision'(d).' Subject to and without waiving
gaid objection, claimant responds as follows: Kavita Sadana,

Esquire answered some questions about the digcovery process, but

[N-ZRN - T S« Y s

did not address any particular answer.

10 || ePECIAL  TNTERROGATORY NO. 15: “IDENTIFY and DOCUMENT any

11 |additional information relevant to the subject you identify and
12 || your interest in each defendant asset, to the extent guch

13 || information is not previously set out in your answers above.”

14 ||objection., This set of discovery relies on preliminary/intro-

15 ||ductory definitiong in violation of Code of Civil Procedure

16 || section 2030.060 subdivision (d). Subject to and without waiving
17 || said objection, claimant responds as follows: Claimant is not

18 ||aware of any additional information that is relevant at this time.
19 || #PERCTAL, INTERROGATORY NO. 16: “Sign and notarize the following

20 ||attached documents:

21 A, Authorization to Release Financial Records and Documents;
22 B, Authorization to Release Cusgtomer Records and Documents;
23 ¢. Authorization to Releage State Tax Documents; and

24 D. Form 6821 Tax release.”

25 ||objection. This set of dlscovery relies on preliminary/intro-
26 || ductory definitions in violation of Code of Civil Procedure
27 | scection 2030.060 subdivigion (d). Objection. Information regarding

28 || tax returns, including income tax returnsg, W-2 and/or 1099 forms

-11-
VERIFIED ANSWER TO FIRST SET OF SPECIAL INTERROGATORIES

%4




Case 5:16-cv-01166-DSF-KK Document 39-2 Filed 01/12/17 Page 13 of 14 Page ID #:410

sy

is privileged under federal énd state law., (See Webb v. Standard
0oil Co. {(1957) 49 Cal.2d 509 [319 P.2d 621]; Brown V. Superior
Court (1977) 71 Cal.App.3d 141 [139 Cal.Rptr. 327]; Aday v.
Superior Court (1961) 85 Cal.2d 789 [13 Cal.Rptr. 415]; Schnabel
v. Superior Court (1993) 5 Cal.4th 704 .[21 Cal.Rptr.2d 2001 .)
This privilege is to be broadly construed. (Sav-on Drugs, Inc. V.
Superior Court (1975) 15 Cal.3d 1, 6-7 [123 Cal.Rptr. 283, 287].)

Objection, This discovery request is so broad and unlimited as to

O 0 N ot A W N

scope as to be an unwarranted annoyance, and an ewmbarrassment, To

[
(o]

comply with the request would be an undue burden on the claimant.

—
—

(dee Code of Civ. Proc., § 2030.090 subd. (h) ; and Columbia

—
N

Broadcasting System, Inc. v. Superior Court of Los Angeles County

fu—ry
w

(1968) 263 Cal:App.Zd 12, 19 [69 Cal.Rptr. 348, 352].) Subject to

—
N

and without waiving sald objection, claimant responds as follows:

F—
w

There is no question for claimant to answer in this item.

[
N

DATED: August 4, 2016

—
~J

VERIFICATION

—
[o]

I, David Scotese, certify and declare that I have read the
foregoing Plaintiff’s First Set of Special Interrogatries to
Claimant David Scotege and know its contents.

S I
<o 0

T am a party to this action and I make this verification for
that reason. I am informed and allege on that ground that the
angwers provided above are true and correct,

N
N

T declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the
atate of California that the Fforegoing ids true and correct.

nN2
w

Executes on July 23, 2016 at Murrieta, California.

David Scotese
In Pro Per

NN
>N

M N
oo ~3

-12-
VERIFIED ANSWER TO FIRST SET OF SPECIAL INTERROGATORIES
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1 PROOF OF SERVICE BY MAILING

I am over the age of 18 and not a party to the within action. I
éwﬁ and operate Mail'Cehter & More. My busginess address is 39520
MURRIETA HOT SPRINGS RD #219, MURRIETA, CALIFORNIA 92563.

on %j 2016, I gerved a copy of CLAIMANT'S FIRST SET OF

SPECIAL INTERROGATORIES TO PLAINTIFF and CLAIMANT’S ANSWER TO

~N N v A W N

FIRST SET OF SPECIAL INTERROGATORIES, on each person or entity

8 || named below by enclosing a copy in an envelope addressed as shown
9 ||below and placing the envelope for collection and mailing on the
10 |date and at the place shown below following our ordinary office
11 || practices.

12
13 ||'TO: FRANK D, KORTUM

14 ||312 NORTH SPRING STREET

15 || LOS ANGELES, CALIFNORNIA 90012
16
17||T am familiar with the practice of this office for collection and
18 ||l processing corregpondence for mailing. on the same day that corre-
19 || spondence is placed for collection and mailing, it is deposited in
20 {{ the ofdinary courée of business with the United States Postal

21 ||Service in a gealed envelope with postage fully prepaid,

22 I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United

23 ||states of America that the foregoing is true and correct,

PG |
24 || Executed omn: July Ei, 2016 at Murrleta, California.

251 - - '

- 27 ! Charleg Hannum

28

40
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1 || EILEEN M. DECKER

United States Attorney

2 || LAWRENCE S. MIDDLETON

Assistant United States Attorney
3 || Chief, Criminal Divisdion

STEVEN R. WELK '

4 || Agsistant United States Attorney
Chief, Asset Forfeiture Section
5 |[[FRANK D. KORTUM

California Bar No. 110984

6 || Assistant United States Attorney
Asset Forfeiliture Section

7 1400 United States Courthouse
312 North Spring Street
8 ILos Angeles, California 90012
Telephone: (213) 894-5710
9 Facsimile: (213) 894-7170
E-mail: frank.kortum@usdo]j .gov
10

Attorneys for Plaintiff
11 || UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

12 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

13 FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

14 WESTERN DIVISION

15 || UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, No. EDCV16-01166-DSF (KKx0

16 Plaintiff, PLAINTIFF’S FIRST REQUEST FOR
ADMISSIONS TO CLAIMANT

17 V. DAVID SCOTESE

18 || $15,000.00 IN U.S. CURRENCY,

19 Defendant.

20 |DAVID SCOTESE,

21 Claimant.

22

23 PROPOUNDING PARTY: PLAINTIFF UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

24 .RESPONDING PARTY: CLAIMANT DAVID SCOTESE

25 Pursuant to Rule 36 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure,

26 ||[plaintiff United States of America, by its attormeys, hereby requests

27 that claimant David Scotese answer the following Requests for

8 Admissions separately, in writing and under oath, and that such

2/
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1 || answers be signed by the person making them and served upon plaintiff
2 | within thirty days after the sgervice hereof.

3 PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that, pursuant to Local Rule 36-2 of
4 || the Local Rules of the United States District Court for the Central

5 District of California, the person answering these Requests for

Admissions shall quote each Request for Admission in full immediately

6

- preceding the statement of any answer thereto.

g DEFINITIONS

5 a. "Complaint" shall mean and refer to the plaintiff's

Complaint for Forfeiture filed in this action.

Lo b. "Werified claim of forfeiture" and "Angwer" shall mean and
t refer to the verified statement identifying interest and answer filed
12 by claimant in the above-entitled action on file herein.
13 a, tyou' and "your" shall mean, refer to and be directed
14 at David Scotese.
15 d. “Defendant” means the above captioned defendant currency in
16 Y which you claim an interest.
17
18 REQUESTS FOR ADMISSIONS

19 || REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 1:

20 You provided the answers to the questions set forth on the

21 i document attached hereto as Exhibit “a”.

22 || REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO, 2:

23 The anewers set forth on the document attached hereto as Exhibit

24 |l »a" are true and correct,

25

26 || REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 3:

27 You derive income from selling bitcoin.

28

2T
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1 || REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 4:

2 You derive income from selling bitcoin in exchange for cash.

3 [ REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 5:

4 The income you derive from selling bitcoin supports your life
5 || and family (as stated in Exhibit “a").

6 || REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 6:

7 You have placed advertisements stating that you are willing to

8 || gsell bitcoin (as stated in Exhibit “A7).

S
Dated: August 19, 2016 Regpectfully submitted,
10
EILEEN M. DECKER
11 ‘ United States Attorney
LAWRENCE S, MIDDLETON
12 Assigtant United States Attormney
Chief, Criminal Divigion
13 STEVEN R. WELK
Aggistant United States Attorney
14 Chief, Asset Forfeiture Section
15

/s8/ Frank D. Kortum
16 FRANK D. KORTUM
Aggistant United States Attorney

v Attorneys for Plaintiff

18 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26

27

28

2g
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Exhibit “A”
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Dave Scotese - Quora
@‘.
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Page 1 of |

Seareh lor questions, peopls, and topics

Dave Scotese-

Webmaster for voluntaryist.com, epiphany engenderer, wnter of
code, philosop..

Fyeds 150 Answers

Hast Rocant | Mt §13y Yous

Answers 150

What is the optimal rate for sugar tax also known as soda tax?

Quattmns 2 ,
-15\;: Dave Scotesa, Wabmastar lor voluntaryist com, eplphany engendardr, water
274

Paats 0 of coda, philasop .

A ety i Nikad

Does “the optimnl rte”™ mesn thit the tadng sanrity geis the most motey, or thnt

suefoty gets the mast benefit? For the first, § have no fdey beeause i reatly depends an
howe willisyg the supor ¢,., pnore)

N
sl e o

T

Can major Bitcoin mining pools maniputate exchange rates by
alternating using and nat using their equipment and exchange
arbitrage to make more money? .

% Dave Scolese, Dealing bitcoln supports my life and family.
A 2 Views
I rorndubout way, o miner who shuts down some of his equipment (U eall him

shuntter) witl end op with less bitewin 1o sell, whiely would allww the price to rise while
supply is cansteitined, .. (more)

- What business restrictions in a corporation can give tax benefits?

'\T{,; Dave Scolese Wabmasles lat voluntaryist com, epiphany engenderer whiter
o of code philosap

Hvon avoid using any Kind of federal privilege, vou do not ineur Bability foe the U8,
Income tux, Phe wesidance of incsme tax Hability e beaelt individual people, hut
P ivest suove s carjiora, L (tnore)y

Why doesn't the U.S. Government go aftar Scientology's tax
axempt status?

'\'J-\éa Dave Scoless, Webmaster far valuntaryist com, epphiany engendeter, wiltet
<7 of code, philozop..

HARX

§ pry he the eose Miat the Chitred of Svientology does aot engage in taxable netivity o

vt any moutey, so s varnbngs pright nos Be “teane” atall A caceful reding of'litle
i the istoi ., pnging

What are some ways ong can one make money around bitcoins?

‘(j";_, Dave Scotese, Dealing bilsoin supports my lile and family
QB nnvaes .
t. Practiee heing honest,

2. Learn how ta use bitentn without getting hacked ae seamined, My newsletter
UFTC Yo ) et hholp with this,

5o Ploee ndy saying that you wre willing ta porchiee hifwoin from hose...

HeTR

httpsi//www.quora,.com/pro t'xle/DaQe-Scotese

Sgnin

Views an Dave's Apswers

1,887 34,247
EE IR TN o
Abgut Cave ey Mot

-m; Southam Gallfornla

O Univarsity of Qalitamts, San
Rlogo

Knows Aboyt

g Taxes

S 4

m Ethics

™ (am the wobmaster lor
vehitony o eorr ) don'f awn il
and 1 don gat pad
WAy 16

; © Bhseln
Oualing bilcoin suppars ty <o
and family
& 14

PRI IO

8/8/2016
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Dave Scotese's answer to What are some ways one can one make money around bitcoins?... Page 1 of |
. F

Search for queslions, people, and topics - Sgnln

What are some ways one can one make money
around hitcoins?

Mel a 21 year old & lew days ayo whi was itaking over $1500.2000 per anth 48 pasave
income by having “several websiles ravolving stound itcoins”

He didn'l want to expand bul hie ssemed o Know a fol abeti - and got me curaus

%; Dave Scotese, Dealing bitcaln supporis my fits and family,
& 230 Views
1o Praetice being honest,

2. Learn how o use bitcoln without getting hueked or scamnied. My newsletter (310
Traders ) ean help with this,

4. Placs nds saying that you are willing to porehase blicoin from thosa wha need to sell it,

4 {Quee you have some biteoin) place ads snying that you are willing to sell bitcoin to
those who need to buy lt,

5. Bonice,

| started dolng that nhnost three yusrt ogo, and I'vis nover made more money uny other
Wiy, !

Wrlitan Mny 21 Viaw Upvoles

Low 2 1)ther Answea 1o Ung Quashon

About the Author

Dave Scotose
. ¥ Watimastar for volumarylst.com, epigh

] . wiiler of cada, philosap.,.
Wirins ubowt Taxss Eihics Bilcoln, The Watkl, Compulet Pragrumiming. and 3 e

More Answers from Dave Scotese Viave Mure

How do you argua wilh people who blame imaligrants tor the problems in a country's
acgonoiny?

27K Vinws

Wil the rige of Bileoln and otber cryplo-currencies realiy bing about tha (all ol entire
goveinmenia?

210 Viaws'

Wivat are the top three character tralls of the hest (raders you know?
At} Vipwa

A queston v Angreho Capilalists what 1s 1t aboid AnGap that mteresits vou?
Hin Vinws .

(1 you Taded o1 your Tl slad up how o you vume bak tor your nesd vantute witbous
s heant espectaliy of you are a lone warno?
VES Vs

Wiuntop # A B 60 B F B HIIALMHODEFQRS! Y WY ¢
Abul < disare Bivacy - Dt « fanbig

https://www.quora.com/What-are-some-ways-one-can-one-make-money-around-bitcoins/an... 8/8/2016
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1 PROOF OF SERVICE BY MAILING
2 I am over the age of 18 and not a party to the within
3 ||laction. I am employed by the Office of the United States
4 ||Attorney, Central District of California. My business address
5 ||is 312 North Spring Street, 14th Floor, Los Angeles, California
6 [[90012.
7 On August 19, 2016, I served a copy of PLAINTIFF’'S FIRST
8 ||REQUEST FPOR ADMISSIONS TO CLAIMANT DAVID SCOTESE on each person
9 |lor entity named below by enclosing a copy in an envelope
10 |l addressed as shown below and placing the envelope for collection
11 |land mailing on the date and at the place shown below fbllowing
12 ||our ordinary office practices.
13 |lmo: David Scotes
15
X I am readily familiar with the practice of this office for
16 collection and proceséing correspondence for mailing. On the
17 same day that correspondence is placed for collection and
18 mailing, it is deposited in the ordinary course of business with
19 the United States Postal Service in a sealed envelope with
20 postage fully prepaid.
21 I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the
22 United States of America that the foregoing is true and correct.
23 I declare that I am employed in the office of a member of
24 the bar of this court at whose direction the service was made.
25 Executed on: August 19, 2016 at Los Angeles, California.
26
/s/ Angie Agsalog
27 Angie Agealog
28

37




Case 5:16-cv-01166-DSF-KK Document 39-4 Filed 01/12/17 Page 1 of 4 Page ID #:420

EXHIBIT “C”




Case 5:16-cv-01166-DSF-KK Document 39-4 Filed 01/12/17 Page 2 of 4 Page ID #:421 |

David Scotese

2

4 I pavid Scotese, IN PRO PER

5

6

7 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

8 FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

9 EASTERN DIVISION |

10

11 JUNITED STATES OF AMERICA ) Case No.: CV 16-01166-DSF (KK)
12 ; CLAIMANT DAVID SCOTESE'S ANSWER

y TO FIRST REQUEST FOR BDMISSIONS

13 Plaintiff, )

14 vs. ;
- 15{1$15,000.00 IN U.S. CURRENCY, ;

16 Defendant ;

17 )

18 )

19 | )

20

21 || PROPOUNDING PARTY: PLAINTIFF UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

22 [RESPONDING PARTY: CLAIMANT DAVID SCOTESE

23 || REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 1:

24 ||[You provided the answers to the questions set forth on the

25 ||document attached hereto as Exhibit “AY,

26 ||RESPONSE: Admitted

27 |REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 2:

28 |[The answers smet forth on the document attached hareto as Exhibit

CLAIMANT DAVID SCOTESE'S ANSW;E:K':I'O FIRST REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS

3y
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“A" are true and correct.

RESPONSE: Admitted.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 3:

You derive income from selling bitcoin.v

RESPONSE: Denied. The word “income” is used in statutory law,
without a legal definition, to refer to monetary gain that is
taxable, and selling my private property is not an income-tax
excisable activity.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 4:

You derive income from selling bitcoin in exchange for cash.
RESPONSE: Denied. The word “income” is used in statutory law,
without a legal definition, to refer to monetary gain that is
taxable, and selling my pri#ate property is not an income-tax
excisable activity.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 5:

The income you derive from selling bitcoin supporﬁs your life
and family (as stated in Exhibit “a") .

RESPONSE: I object to this request for admission because it
implies that I have claimed to derive “income” from selling
bitcoin. The term “income” appears four times in Exhibit “A“,
first stating that the exercise of federal privilege is required
to incur income tax liability, second, pointing out that avoiding
such liability can benefit individual people, third, suggesting
that the Church of Scientology might not earn what can be called
“income,” and lastly, as part of a question someone else posted
referring to what a 2l-year old was doing. I do exercise my right
to sell my own property after purchasing it for a lower price in

order to support my family without incurring any tax liability.
.

CLAIMANT DAVID SCOTESE’S ANSWER TO FIRST REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS

3
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—

REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 6:

2 |¥ou have placed advertisements stating that you are willing to
3 isall bitcoin (as stated in Exhibit “A").
4 | RESPONSE;: Admitted.
5 |DATED: September 9, 2016
6
7 VERIFICATION

I, David Scotese, certify and declare that I have read the
8 || foregoing Plaintiff’s Request For Admissions to Claimant David

Scotese and know its contents.

9 .

I am a party to this action and I make this verification for
10 [[that reason. I am informed and allege on that ground that the

answers provided above are true and correct.

—
—

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the
State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.

p—
o]

Executed on september 9, 2016 at Murrieta, California,

. e
v W

Lol e

David Scotese
In Pro Per

N N NN NN e ek e
ggmm-&wwwc@m\lc\

.3
CLAIMANT DAVID SCOTESE'S ANSWER TO FIRST REQUEST FOR ADMISSIONS
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1

2

3

4 lpavid Scotese, IN PRO PER

5

6

7 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

8 FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

9 EASTERN DIVISION

10

11 |[UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ) Case No.: CV 16-01166~DSF (KK)

12 ; CLATMANT’' S ANSWER TO FIRST SET

) OF RE R THE D I

13 Plaintiff, ) 5

14 vs. ;

15|$15,000.00 IN U.S. CURRENCY, ;

16 Defendant g

17] ;

18 ;

19 )

20

21 {|PROPOUNDING PARTY: PLAINTIFF UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

22 iREISE’OI\IDIIING PARTY: CLATMANT DAVID SCOTESE

23 |REQUEST NO. 1:

24 ||1All documents evidencing, reflecting, or refexxing to each and

25 |[|every communication between you and Woodie Ochle from

26 |January 1, 2011 through the present date.

27 |ANSWER NO., Ll: I propose to mail a thumbdrive containing the

28 || requested documents, or to email a zip file containing the
CLAIMANT'S ANSWER TO FIRST SET OF REQ—U]F:STS FOR THE PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS

4f
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f—

requested documents, to PLAINTIFF’s counsel, Frank Kortum,
whichever he chooses. I further propeose to provide text messages
in a CsV (“Comma Separated éalues") file which will indicate the
content of the message, which party sent the message, and when it
was sent, and that in the case of a message containing. an image,
the image will be included in a separate file, the filename of
which will be in@icated in the €8V file field that would otherwise

contain the content of the message.

LY =T - - I N " T N T S o

lREQUEST No. 2:

10 |A11 documents identifying each and every e-mail account used by

11 lyou to communicate with Woodie Ochle from January 1, 2011 through
12 || the present date. |

13 | ANSWER No. 2: I object to this discovery request insofar as it

14 {| seeks information not relevant to the subject métter of this

15 laction or likely to lead to the discovery of admlssible evidence.
16 | I object because the request is overbroad and unduly burdensome to
17 {{the extent it seeks “all documents identifying each and every e-
18 |mail account used by [me] to communicate with Woodie Ochle”. I

19 lobject because the request is also an invasion of the privacy of
20 |those correspondents of mine to whom I have identified said email
21 jaccount., Subject to and without waiver of the foregoing

22 lobjections, I answer that many documents identify the e-mail

23 [laccount I used to communicate with Woodie Ochle, but do not

24 llindicate that I used it to communicate with him. All documents
25 ||that do identify said e-mail account as the one I used to

26 || communicate with Woodie Ochle will be included in the answer to
27 Inumber 1, above.

28 || REQUEST No. 3:

-3-
J CLAIMANT'S ANSWER TO FIRST SET OF REQUESTS FOR THE PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS
| .

YT
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fa—y

All documents identifying any acaounts held by you with any
provider of text communication services used by you to comunicate
with Woodie Ochle £rom Januéry 1, 201l through the present date.
ANSWER No. 3: I object to this discovery request insofar as it
seeks information not relevant to the subject matter of this
action or likely to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence.
I object because the request is overbroad and unduly burdensome to

the extent it seeks “all documents identifying any account held by

(V- T -~ R T~ S P S 7 O

[me] with any provider of text communications services used by

[,
<

[mel to communicate with Woodie ochlé”. Subject to and without

Yt
[

waiver of the foregoing objections, I answer that billing

—
|\

statements from AT&T, Verizon, and Frontier fit this description

—t
w3

but none of them are in my possession. I propose to include in

Yot
B-N

the zip file or thumbdrive the one email from Apple which

s
v

identifies my “AppleID” which is my email address,

—
~1 o

REQUEST No. 4:

ok
-~

All documents evidencing, reflecting or raferring to the sourxce of

—
&

the bitcoins that you sold to Woodie Ochle.

N
<

ANSWER No. 4: I object to this discovery request insofar as it

N
—

seeks information not relevant to the subject matter of this

N
[SS]

action or likely to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence.

[\
o

“I object because the request is overbroad and unduly burdensome to

N
A

the extent it seeks “all documents evidencing, reflecting or

na
wn

referring to the source of the bitcoins”. I object because this

)
{223

request is an invasion of my right to privacy and the right to

[\
3

privacy of those from whom I purchase bitcoins. I also object

™D
o

because all the bitcoin I have ever purchased is as

-3
CLAIMANT'S ANSWER TO FIRST SET OF REQUESTS FOR THE PRODUCTION QF DOCUMENTS

%
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p—

indistinguishable from any of the bitcoin I have ever sold to one
person as it is from bitcoin I sold to any other person. Subject
to and without waiver of the foregoing objections, I answer that I
have been buying bitcoins from people that want to sell them for
over three years, during which time I have created and published
numerxous documents evidencing, reflecting, or refeiring to those

people in aggregate, which documents are all available in the

public domain,

O @ ~N oy o A W N

REQUEST No., 5:

10 |ALl documents identifying each and every person to whom you sold
11 bitcoins between January 1, 2011 and the present date.

12 || AMSWER No. 5: I object to this discovery request insofar as it

13 || seeks information not relevant to the subject matter of this

14 laction or likely to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence.
15 || L object because the request is overbroad and unduly burdensome to
16 jthe extent it seeks “all documents identifying each and every

17 {|person to whom [I] sold bitcoins”. 1 object because this request
18 ||is an invasion of my right to privacy and the right to privacy of

19 lthose to whom I sold bitcoins.

20 | REQUEST No. 6:

21 1ALl documents evidencing, reflecting or referring to the income

22 |you derived from sales of bitcoins in each year from January 1,

23 12011 through the present date.

24 [|ANSWER No. 6: I object to this discovery request because the term
25 || “income” has no clear legal definition. I object to this discovery
26 | request insofar as it seeks information not.relevant to the

27 ||subject matter of this action or likely to lead to the discovery

28 |of admissible evidence. I object because the request is overbroad

-4-
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|l and unduly burdensome to the extent it seeks “all documents
evidencing, reflecting or referring to the income you derived from
sales of bitcoins”. I object because this request is an invasion
of my right to privacy. Subject to and without waiver of the

foregoing objections, I answer that the amount of monetary gain I

2

3

4

5

6 lhave derived from engaging in taxable activities by selling

7 |[bitcoin is zero. I have published many stateménts evidencing,

8 || reflecting, or réferriqg to the taxability of private enterprise
9 [land they are available in the public domain. I have also

0 || submitted tax returns to the government which properly do not

11 linclude monetary gain from my private enterprise as income, which
12 | tax returns are already in PLAINTIFF's possession.

13 || REQUEST No. 7:

14 | A1l documents evidencing, reflecting or referring to any

15 jadvertisements placed by you that mentionaed bitcoins from January
16|l1, 2511 through the prasent date.

17 | ANSWER No. 7; I object to this discovery request insofar as it

18 || seeks information not relevant to the subject matter of this

9 llaction or likely to lead to the disco&ery of admissible evidence.
20 iI object because the request is o&erbroad‘and unduly burdensome to
21lthe extent it seeks “all documents evidencing, reflecting or

22 ||referring to any advertisements placed by [me]”.'Subject to and‘
23 lwithout waiver of the foregoihg objections, I answer that aside

|
24 [|fxom the webpages to which there are links at the bottom of the

25 |page at https://localbitcoins.com/accounts/profile/dscotese/, all
26 || such documents are private communications and are therefore
27 lunavailable to third parties. The advertisement Woodie Ochle

28 ||answered is equally available to PLABINTIEF as it is to me, at

-5
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1 |https://localbitcoins,com/ad/20948/purchase-bitcoin-cash-deposit-

mt-click-for-discounts-options-united-states although it has been

modified since he first answered it.
REQUEST No. 8:

All documents avidencing, reflecting or referring to

"through the present date on

2
3
4
5
6 communications about bitcoins mada by you from January 1, 2011
7
8 la. internet web sites,

9ib. blog posts,

10 |e. Facebook accounts,

11 |d. Twitter accounts, ox

12le. any social media,

13 || ANSWER No. 8: I object to this discovery request insofar as it

14 |seeks information not relevant to the subject matter of this

15 laction or likely to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence.
16 |I object because the request is overbroad and unduly burdensome to

17 [the extent it seeks “all documents evidencing, reflecting or

18 [|referring to communications about bitcoins made by [me]l”. Subject
19 ||te and without waiver of the foregoing objections, I answer that I
20 lhave written about bitcoins on Quora.com, on localbitcoins.com, on
21 ||Facebook, on LinkedIn, on my personal blog at
22'litmocracy.blogspot.com, in comments on several websites that use
23 ||the Disqus commenting system, and on other websites that I am not
24 |lable to recall at this time.

25 | REQUEST No. 9:

26 ||[A1ll documents evidencing, reflacting, or referring to any xapoxts
27 | Eiled by you (or any business or entity under your contrxol) with

28 lany agency of the govermment of the United States, regarding any
~6-
CLAIMANT'S ANSWER TO FIRST SET OF REQUESTS FOR THE PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS
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1 ||sales of bitcoins made bj you (or any business or entity under
your control), for the periocd from January 1, 2011 through the
praesent date.

ANSWER No. 9: I object to this discovery request insofar as it
seeks information not relevant to the subject matter of this

action or likely to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence.

H
I object because all such documents are equally available to

PLAINTIFF as they are to me. Subject te and without waiver of the

O 88 1 & th s W N

foregoing objections, I answer that, as far as I know, there are

1

(=]

no such reports. : ‘
11 | REQUEST No, 10:
12 1If you registered any activity or business conducted by you (or
13 lany entity under your control) with any agency of the government
14 |l of tﬁe United States, produce all documents avidencing, reflacting
15 [lor referring to such registration.
16 |ANSWER No. 10: I object to this discovery request insofar as it
17 || seeks information not relevant to the subject matter of this
I8 [faction or likely to lead to the discovery of admissible evidence.
19|T object because all such documents are equally available to
20 || PLAINTIFF as they are to me. Subject to and without waiver of the
21 || foregoing objections, I answer that, if I remember correctly, I
22 [[have not made any such registration. If I have, the registration
23 ||is already in the possession of the government.
24 ||REQUEST No. 11:
25 | If your responses to any of the Requests for Admission; served

26 || concurrently herewith, are anything other than unqualified

27 ||admissions, produce all documents supporting your responses.

28 | ANSWER No. 11: There are several documents supporting my

-7-
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s

responses, many of which have been collected on Peter
Hendrickson’s website at
http://www.losthorizons.com/BulletinBoard.htm. The document
Hendrickson provides at

http://losthorizons.com/Documents/AllEconomicActivitylsNotIncome.h

tm will be very helpful in showing that my answers are accurate.
i

REQUEST No. 12:

Produce all documents identified in your response to the Special

=B - TR > L ¥, T~ S v B

Interrogatories served in this action, to the extent

—
<o

said documents are not produced in response to any other Request

Yt
ok

for Production saet forth above.

—
[ 3]

ANSWER No. 12: I know of no documents fitting this description.

—
w2

DATED: September 9, 2016

-9

VERIFICATION

[y
W

I, David Scotese, certify and declare that I have read the
foregoing PLAINTIFF'S FIRST SET OF REQUESTS FOR THE PRODUCTION OF
DOCUMENTS to David Scotese and know its contents.

et d
NN

I am a party to this action and I make this verification for
that reason. I am informed and allege on that ground that the
answers provided above are true and correct.

b
o

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the
State of California that the foregoing is true and correct.

N
<

Executes on September 9, 2016 at Murrieta, California.

N
Pt

N
™I

Dtz

David Scotese
In Pro Per

N
(T8

NN NN
6a 3 &Y W
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Asgistant United States Attorney
3 ||Chief, Criminal Division
STEVEN R. WELK
4 ||assistant United States Attorney
Chief, Asset Forfeiture Section
5 || FRANK D. KORTUM
California Bar No. 110984
6 ||Assistant United States Attorney
Asset Forfeilture Section
7 United States Courthouse
312 North Spring Street, 14th Floor
8 Los Angeleg, California 90012
Telephone: (213) 894-5710
9 Faceimile: (213) 894-7177
E-Mail: Frank.Kortum@usdoj.gov
10
Attorneys for Plaintiff
11 ||{UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
12 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
13 FOR TEE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
14 BEASTERN DIVISION
15 UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, Cage No.,: EDCV 16-01166-DSF (KKx)
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0 DAVID SCOTESE,
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24
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25
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26
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10
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PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Plaintiff United States of America (the “government”) hereby
objects to these interrogatories, both individually and in their
entirety, to the extent claimant has attempted to serve them as
Special Interrogatories. Rule G(6) of the Supplemental Rules for
Admiralty or Maritime Claims and Asset Forfeiture Actions provides
that the government may serve Special Interrogatories but does not
give claimants the right to serve such interrogatories. All
responses set forth herein are made subject to this objection. In
addition, plaintiff has not at this time fully completed its
discovery and investigation in this action. All responses
contained herein are based solely upon such information and
evidence as are presently available and specifically known to the
plaintiff at this time and disclose oniy those factual contentions
and legal conclusions which presently occur to the government at
this time. Further discovery, investigation, research and
analysis is expected to supply additiomnal facts, add meaning to
currently known facts, and establish entirely new factual
contentions and legal conclusions, which may lead to substantial
additions or changes to the information provided herein.

Plaintiff reserves the right to add or change any and all
responses herein as additional facts are ascertained, legal
research is completed, and analyses are undertaken. The responses
herein are made in a good faith effort to supply as much
information as is presently known to the plaintiff in this action,

INTERROGATORY NO, 1:

Do you pay the salaries of judges Dale S. Fischer and Kenly

Kiya Kato?
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1 [{PLAINTIFF’S RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 1

2 The government objects to this interrogatory pursuant to

3 ||Rule 26(b) (1) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure on the

4 |lgrounds that it concerns a subject matter that is irrelevant to
5 ||any party’s claim or defense. The government further objects to
6 ||this interrogatory on the ground that it is frivolous and

7 ||offensive to the extent it implies that the decisions of any

8 ||united States District Judge or United States Magistrate Judge

9 ||are influenced by the source of their salaries. The government
10 || further objects to this interrogatory on the ground that it is
11 ||vague and ambiguous in that the term “you” is not defined, and
12 ||therefore could refer either to the person verifying the

13 |l interrogatory responses, or the entire United States government.

14 || INTERROGATORY NO. 2

15 Do you own, rum, control, or otherwise have jurisdiction
16 ||over the court that is providing this due process?

17 {|PLAINTIFF’S RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 2:

18 The government objects to this interrogatory on the ground

19 [lthat it is vague, ambiguous, and unintelligible with respect to

20 ||the phrase “this due process.” The government further objects to
21 ||this interrogatory pursuant to Rule 26(b) (1) of the Federal Rules
22 |lof Civil Procedure on the ground that it concerns a subject matter
23 ||that is irrelevant to any party’s claim or defense. The

24 ||government further objects to this interrogatory on the ground

25 |{[that it is frivolous and offensive to the extent it suggests that
26 ||the government “own[g], run{s], controlls] or hal[s] jurisdiction
27 ||over the {United States District] [Clourt . . . .”

28
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SPECIAL INTERROGATORY NO. 3:

If you have discussed Alternative Dispute Resolution, to what
conclusions did you come?

PLAINTIFF’S RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 3:

The govermment objects to this interrogatory on the ground
that it is wvague andvambiguous. The government further objects to
this interrogatory pursuant to Rule 26(b) (1) of the Federal Rules
of Civil Procedure on the ground that whether or when Alternative
Dispute Resolution is utilized is irrelevant to any party’s claim
or defense. Further objection is made that any internal
discussions concerning this litigation are exempt from disclosure
under the attorney/client and/or attorney work product privileges.

INTERROGATORY NO. 4:

If defendant asset has been offered a public defender, what
is the name of the man or woman who will act as defendant’s
counsel?

PLAINTIFF’S RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO., 4:

The government objects to this interrogatory on the ground
that it is vague and ambiguous. The government further objects to
this interrogatory pursuant to Rule 26 (b) (1) of the Federal Rules
of Ciwvil Procedure on the ground that it concerns a subject matter
that 1s irrelevant to any party’s claim or defense. Without
waiving the foregoing objections, the defendant in this action is
currency and is not entitled to legal representation.

SPECIAL INTERROGATORY NO. 5:

What evidence do you have, if any, that claimant ever
furnished or intemnded to furnish any moneys in exchange for any

controlled substance or listed chemical in violation of Subchapter

4

T
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I of Chapter 13 of U.S. Code Title 217

PLAINTIFF'S RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 5:

As indicated in the government’s verified complaint, claimant
gent bitcoing in excﬁange for cash (in the form of the defendant
currency) to a person who at the time was under investigation as a
drug dealer. The person who sent the defendant currency to
claimant packaged and shipped it in a manner that is consistent
with how drug dealers package and ship currency. The defendant
currency is therefore subject to forfeiture unless claimant can
establish that he was an innocent owner of the currency. To the
extent claimant asserts that he is an innocent owner of the
defendant currency, the assertion is without merit because there
ig no evidence currently available to the government suggesting
that claimant exercised due diligence in obtaining any information
about the person to whom he sold the bitcoins, or in determining
whether the defendant currency was derived from a legal or
legitimate source.

INTERROGATORY NO. 6:

What evidence do you have, if any, that defendant agset is
traceable to any exchanée for a controlledﬂsubstance or listed
chemical in violation of Subchapter I of Chapter 13 of U.S. Code
Title 217

PLAINTIFF/S RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 6:

As indicated in the government’s verified complaint, claimant
gent bitcoins in exchange for cash (in the form of the defendant
currency) to a person who at the time was under investigation as a
drug dealer. The pefson who sent the defendant currency to

claimant packaged and shipped it in a manner that is consistent

g3
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with how drug dealers package and ship currency. The defendant
currency is therefore subject to forfeiture unless claimant can
establish that he was an innocent owner of the currency. To the
extent claimant assertg that he is an innocent owner of the
defendant currency, thevassertion ig without merit because there
is no evidence currently available to the government suggesting
that claimant exercised due diligence in obtaining any information
about the person to whom he sold the bitcoins, or in determining
whether the defendant currency was derived from a legal'or
legitimate source.

SPECIAL INTERROGATORY NO. 7:

What are the names of the men and/or women or the man or the
woman who will dispose of defendant asset if claimant’s property
right in it is terminated by the forfeiture you seek?

PLAINTIFF’S RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 7:

The government objects to this interrogatory omn the ground
that it is vague and ambiguous. The government further objects to
this interrogatory pursuant to Rule 26(b) (1) of the Federal Rules
of Civil Procedure on the ground that it concerns a subject matter
that is irrelevant to any party’s claim or defehse, in that if a
judgment of forfeiture ig issued in this action, claimant will
have no legitimate interest in ascertaining the identities of the
personnel regponsible for disposing of the defendant asset.

INTERROGATORY NO. 8:

How many parcels does the Postal Inspector Joseph Bennett
select for further examination in a typical week at the Redlands

Sorting Facility?
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PLAINTIFF’S RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 8:

The government does not collect, acquire or ﬁaintain
information regarding the number of parcels selected for
inspection per week at the Redlands Sorting Facility. The
government accordingly objects to this interrogatory pursuant to
Rule 26(b) (1) of the Federal Rulesgs of Civil Procedure on the
ground that the effort required to obtain the information sought
(assuming that the information even exists, which the government
gpecifically does not admit) is not proportional to the needs of
the case consgidering the importance of the issues at stake in the
action, the amount in controversy, the parties’ resources, the
importance of the discovery in resolving the issue, and whether
the burden and expense of the proposed discovery outweighs its
likely benefit.

INTERROGATORY NO. 9:

Doeg Postal Inspector Joseph Benmett [sicl

PLAINTIFF/S RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 9:

The govermment objects to this interrogatory on the ground
that it is not a complete sentence and doesg not constitute a
question, and is therefore vague, ambiguous and unintelligible.

INTERROGATORY NO. 10:

During the training of narcotics detection canine “Chewy”,
what reward was used when Chewy did not alert to an item that had
no traces of narcotics but was selected for further examination?

PLAINTIFF/S RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 10:

The government objects to thisg interrogatory to the extent it

is based on the premise that a reward was used when “Chewy” did

SS
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1 {|not alert to an item that had no traces of narcotics but was
2 ||selected for further examination.

3 || INTERROGATORY NO. 1l1:

4 Assuming Chewy has a “work mode” in which he seeks out
5 |{|narcotics, what causes him to exit “work mode”?

6 || PLAINTIFEF’S RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 11:

7 The government objects to this interrogatory on the ground

8 ||that the term “work mode” ig undefined, thus rendering the

9 ||interrogatory vague and ambiguous. The government further objects
10 ||to this intérrogatory pursuant to Rule 26 (b) (1) of the Federal

11 ||Rules of Civil Procedure on the ground that it seeks information
12 ||that is not proportional to the needs of the case considering the
13 || importance of the issues at stake in the action, the amount in

14 |} controversy, the parties’ resources, the importance of the

15 ||discovery in resolving the issue, and whether the burden and

16 ||expense of the proposed discqvery outweighs its likely benefit.

17 ||Without waiving the foregoing objectionsg, and solely as a courtesy
18 ||extended for the purpose of advancing the progress of this

19 ||litigation in general and the discovery procegs in particular, the
20 ||government regponds that to the extent the term “work mode” can be
21 ||considered synonymous with deployment, the law enforcement officer
22 ||responsible for deploying a narcotics detection canine controls

23 ||the time, place and manner of deployment.

24 || INTERROGATORY NO. 12:

25 On January 13, 2016, when Patrick Estrada first had his
26 || “narcotics K97, Chewy, search an area with crates, carts, boxes,
27 [land miscellaneocusg items, were there any recently mailed USPS

28 || Priority Maill Express Parcels in the area?
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PLAINTIFF’S RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 12:

There was at least one recently-mailed USPS Priority Mail
Express parcel (namely, the parcel subsequently found to have
obtained the defendant currency (the "gsubject parcel")) in the
area of the sorting facility where "Chewy" searched. To the
extent this interrogatory seeks information about additional
parcelsg that may have been in the area, the government objects on
the following grounds: A law enforcement of ficet regsponsible for
deploying a narcotics detection canine has discretion to place
either a single parcel in the area to be searched, or more than
one parcel in the area to be searched. The government does not
regularly collect, acquire or maintain records concerning the
total number of parcels that may be placed in areas where
narcotics detection canines may be deployed. Pursuant to Rule
26 (b) (1) of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure, the government
therefore objects to this interrogatory on the ground that effort
involved in obtaining the information sought (assuming that the
information e&en existsg, which the government specifically does
not admit) ig not proportional to the needs of the case
considering the importance of the issues at stake in the action,
the amount in controversy, the parties’ resources, the ilmportance
of the discovery in tesolving the issue, and whether the burden
and expense of the proposed discovery outweighs its likely
benefit. Without waiving the foregoing objection, the government
responds that it is not presently in possesgsion of evidence
suggesting that at the time "Chewy" was deployed to the area
containing the subject parcel, there were any other recently-

mailled parcelg in that area.
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INTERROGATORY NO. 13:

On January 13, 2016, when Patrick Estrada had his narcotics
X9, Chewy, gsearch an area into which Officer Estrada had just
placed USPS Priority Mail Express Parcel number EL 337571018 US
(SUBJECT PARCEL), was anything other than SUBJECT PARCEL placed
into the area?

PLAINTIFF’S RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 13:

The government objects to this interrogatory on the
ground that the term "anything®" is undefined, thus rendering the
interrogatory overbroad, vague and ambiguous. To the extent this
intérrogatory seeks information about additional parcels that may
have been in the area, the government objects on the following
grounds: A law enforcement officer has discretion to place
either a single item or parcel in the area where tﬁe narcotics
detection canine is to be deployed, or to plaée more than one
item or parcel in that area. The government does’not regularly
collect, acquire or maintain records concerning the total number
of iltems or parcels that may be placed in areas where narcotics
detection canines may be deployed. Pursuant to Rule 26(b) (1) of
the Federal Rulesg of Civil Procedure, the government objects to
this interrogatory on the ground that the effort involved in
obtaining the information sought (agsuming that the information
even exists, which the government specifically does not admit) is
not proportional to the needs of the case considering the
importance of the issuesg at stake in the action, the amount in
controvergy, the partieg’ resources, the importance of the
discovery in resolving the issue, and whether the burden and

expense of the proposed discovery outweighs its likely benefit.

10

55(
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Without waiving the foregoing objections, and solely as a
courtesy extended‘for the purpose of advancing the pirogress of
thig litigation in general and the discovery process in
particular, the government responds when Chewy was deployed to
the area where the gubject parcel had been placed, the area
contained other items (such as crates and carts) that had been
placed there from time to time over the preceding days, weeks,
months and/or vears. “

INTERROGATORY NO, 14:

What evidencé, other than Chewy’s alert, do you have that
the parcel to which Chewy alerted on January 13, 2016 actually
contained the traces of narcotics to which the canine was
allegedly trained to alert?

PLAINTIFF’S RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 14:

The government cbjects to the apparent premise of this
interrogatory, which is that "Chewy" was trained to alert to
"traces of marcotics.” Properly trained canines alert to
quickly-digsipating odors or byproducts of controlled substances,
go that a pogitive canine alert to currency (or a package
containing currency) constitutes evidence that the currency has
been in recent contact with a controlled substance. The
government further objects to this interrogatory pursuant to Rule
26 (b) on thevground that the effort involved in obtaining the
information sought about "traces of narcotics" is not
proportional to the needs of the case considering the importance
of the issues at stake in the action, the amount in controversy,
the partieg’ resources, the importance of the discovery in

regolving the issue, and whether the burden and expense of the

11
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1 ||proposed discovery outweighs its likely benefit.

2 || INTERROGATORY NO. 15:

3 What are the names of any men and/or women at the Redlands
4 |ISorting Facility who are able to cause Chewy to alert when no

5 {|narcoticsg are present?

6 ||PLAINTIFF’S RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 15:

7 The government objects to the apparen£ premise of this

8 || interrogatory, which ig that narcotics detection canines are

9 || trained to alert to the presence of narcotics. Properly trained
10 || canines alert to guickly-dissipating byproducts of controlled

11 || substances, so that a posgitive canine alert to currency (or a

12 ||package containing currency) constitutes evidence that the

13 currenby has been in recent contact with a controlled substance.
14 |[The government further objects to this interrogatory to the extent
15 ||it implies that there are people at the Redlands Sorting Facility
i6 who are able to cause narcotics detection canines to alert when‘no
17 ||controlled substances (and/or odors or byproducts of controlled

18 i| substancesg) are present. The government further objects to this
19 || interrogatory pursuant to Rule 26 (b) (1) of the Federal Rules of

20 {|Civil Procedure on the ground that in the absence of any evidence
21 || that guch people exist, the effort required to regpond to this

22 || interrogatory is not proportional to the needs of the case

23 || considering the importance of the issues at stake in the action,
24 ||the amount in controversy, the parties’ resources, the importance
25 j|of the disgcovery in resolving the issue, and whether the burden

26 ||and expense of the proposed digcovery outweighs its likely

27 ||benefit, Without waiving the foregoing objection, the'government

28 |lresponds that it is not in possession of evidence suggesting that

12
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1 ||there are people at the Redlandg Sorting Facility who are able to
2 ||cause "Chewy" to falsely alert to the presence of odors or
3 ||byproducts of controlled substances.

4 [l INTERROGATORY NO. 16:

5 What ig the name of the wman or woman acting as custodian of
6 ||the defendant asset for the UNITED STATES MARSHAL SERVICE, LOS

7 || ANGELES, CALIFORNIA, and if said custodian is insured with a

8 ||bond, who is the insurer?

9 ||PLAINTIFF’S RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 16:

10  The government objects to this interrogatory pursuant to Rule
11 [126(b) (1) of the PFederal Rules of Civil Procedure on the ground

12 |{that the circumsgtanceg under which custody of the defendant

13 || currency is being maintained by the United States Marshals Service
14 |lare not relevant to any party's claim or defense in this actiomn.

15 || INTERROGATORY NO. 17:

16 Who held the property rights to defendant before it was

17 || seized?

18 || PLAINTIFF’S RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 17:

19 The government objects to thisg interrogatory on the ground

20 ||that it calls for a legal conclusgion. Without waiving the

21 || foregoing objection, the government resgponds that prior to the

22 || shipment of the defendant currency to the claimant, it was in the
23 ||possession of Woody Ochle, but he forfeited to the United States
24 ||any property rights he may have had in the defendant currency

25 ||because his acquisition of the defendant currency occurred in

26 ||violation of 21 U.S.C. § 841 {(as alleged in the verified complaint
27 h@rein).

28

13
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INTERROGATORY NO. 18:

Who holds the property rights to defendant until the matter

before the court is resolved?

PLAINTIFF’S RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO, 18:

The government objects to this interroéatory on the’ ground
that it calls for a legal conclusion. Without waiving the
foregoing objection, the government stateg that the entry of a
judgment of forfeiture in this action will constitute judicial
recognition of the goverﬁment‘s currently existing property rights
in the defendant currency.

INTERROGATORY NO. 19:

Doeg plaintiff compensate innocent recipients of assets when
it guccessfully eliminates theilr property right in said assets
through forfeiture such as plaintiff seeks in the current case?

PLAINTIFF’S RESPONSE TO INTERROGATORY NO. 19:

The government objectg to the apparent premise of this
interrogatory, which is that the government seeks to "eliminate”
the property rights of innocent owners. The government further
objects to this interrogatory pursuant to Rule 26 (b) (1) of the
Federal Rules of Civil Procedure on the ground that the issue of
"compensation" ig irrelevant to thelclaim or defenge of any party
to this action. Specifically, thé burden of proof isg on claimant
in this action to establish that he is the innocent owner of the
defendant currency. If claimant is unable to egtablish that he
is the innocent owner of the defendant currency, the government
will be entitled to a judgment forfeiting the defendént currency,
and the isgue of compensgation will be irrelevant., Similarly, if

judgment in favor of the claimant is entered because he is able

14
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to establish that he i1s the,innocent owner of the defendant
currency, he will acquire ownership of the defendant currency by
virtue of the judgment and the igssue of compensation will be
irrelevant.

DATED: August 19, 2016 EILEEN M. DECKER

United States Attorney

LAWRENCE S. MIDDLETON )
Asgistant United States Attorney
Chief, Criminal Division

STEVEN R. WELK

Agsgistant United States Attorney
Chief, Asset Forfeiture

/s/ Frank D. Kortum

FRANK D. KORTUM
Assigtant United States Attorney
Agset Forfelture Section

Attorneys for Plaintiff
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

15
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VERIFICATION
24 T, Anthony Jacobs, hereby declare that:
3 1, I am a Special Agent with the United States Postal

4 ||Inspection Service, and am the case agent for the forfeiture

5 ||matter entitled United States v, $15,000 in U.S. Currency, SA CV

16-1166 DSF (KKx) .

7 2. I have read the above Plaintiff’s Verified Response To
o First Set of Interrogatories and know its contents.

3. Everything contained in the response is true and
12 correct, to the best of my knowledge and belief.

I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true

11
and correct.

S/
12 Executed 23[ /iD , 2016 in Los Angeles, California.
13

14

s o] Wl O

16 ANTHONY JpCOBS

17

18
19
20
21
22

24
25
26
27
28
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1 PROOF OF SERVICE BY MAILING

2 I am over the age of 18 and not a party to the within

3 |laction. I am employed by the Office of the United States

4 ||Attorney, Central District of California. My business address

5 ||is 312 North Spring Street, 14th Floor, Los Angeles, California
6 ||90012.

7 On August 19, 2016, I sgerved a copy of PLAINTIFF’S VERIFIED

8 RES‘PONSE TO FIRST SET OF INTERROGATORIES PROPOUNDED BY CLAIMANT
9 ||DAVID SCOTESE on each pergon or entity named below by enclosing
10 ||a copy in an envelope addreszsed as shown below and placing the
11 {|envelope for collection and mailing on the date and at the place
12 {| shown below following our ordinary office practices.

13 ||To: David Scotese

14 Murrieta, CA 92563

15

__X T am readily familiar with the practice of this office for

16 collection and processing corregpondence for mailing. On the

17 gsame day that correspondence is placed for collection and

18 mailing, it is deposited in the ordinary course of business with
19 the United States Postal Service in a sealed envelope with
20 postage fully prepaid.
21 I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the
22 United States of America that the foregoing is true and correct.
23 I declare that I am employed in the office of a member of
24 the bar of this court at. whose direction the service was made.
25 mxecuted on: August 19, 2016 at Losg Angeleg, California.
26

/8/ Angie Agsalog
27 Angie Agsalog
28
65"
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ETLEEN M, DECKER
United States Attorney
LAWRENCE S8, MIDDLETON
Assgistant United States Attorney
Chief, Criminal Division
STEVEN R. WELK
Agsistant United States Attorney
Chief, Asset Forfeiture Section
FRANK D. KORTUM
California Bar No, 110984
Assistant United States Attorney
Agget Forfeiture Section

United States Courthouse

Page 2 of 14 Page ID #:452

312 North Spring Street, 14%h Floor

Log Angeles,
Telephone: {213) 894-5710
Facgimlile: (213) 894-7177

California 90012

E-Mail: Frank.Kortum@usdoj.gov

Attorneys. for Plaintiff
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

EASTERN DIVISION

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Plaintiffs,

$15,000.00 IN U.S. CURRENCY,

Defendant.

DAVID SCOTESE,

Claimant,

PROPOUNDING PARTY: CLATIMANT,
RESPONDING PARIY: PLAINTIFF,
SET NUMBER: ONE

Cage No,: EDCV 16-01166-DSF (KKx)
PLAINTIFF'S RESPONSE TO FIRST SET
OF REQUESTS FOR ADMISSIONS
PROPOUNDED BY CLAIMANT DAVID
SCOTESE

DAVID SCOTESE
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

44




Case 5:16-cv-01166-DSF-KK  Document 39-7 Filed 01/12/17 Page 3 of 14 Page ID #:453

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Purguant to Rules 26 and 36 of the Federal Ruleg of Civil
Procedure, plaintiff United Statesg of America (the “government”)
hereby responds and object to claimant’s First Set of Requests for
Aduniggions (collectively, “Requests”). Each of the government’s
responses, in addition to any specifically stated objections, is
gubject to and incorporates the following Gemneral Objections (to
the extent applicable). The assertion of the same, similar, or
additional objections, or a partial response to an individual
Request, does not waive any of the government’sgs General
Objections.

General Objections

L. The government objectg to these Requests to the extent
that they are overbroad and unduly burdensome and impose
obligations in excess of those imposed by the Federal Rules of
Civil Procedure. i

2, The government objects to these Requests to the extent
that they seek to impose burdens or obligations inconsistent with
those imposed by the Federal Rules of Civlil Procedure, the Local
Rules of Practice of the United States District Court for the
Central District of California (“Local Rules”), or any other

applicable ruleg and statutes. Plaintiff will respond to each of

the Reqguests in accordance with the requirements of the Federal

and Lrocal Rules.

3. The government objectg to these Requests to the extent
that they seek information that is neither relevant to the claims
or defenseg of any party to this litigatiomn, nor proportiomate to

the needs of the case,

7
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4, The govermnment objectg to these Requests to the extent
that they seek information protected from disclosure by the
attorney-client privilege, the attorney work product doctrine, or
any other applicable privilege, protection, or immunity. No
information subjeét to such privilege, protection, or immunity
will be provided.

5, The inadvertent disclosure by the government of
information protected by the attorney-client privilege, the
attorney work prodﬁct doctrine, or any other applicable
privilege, protection, or immunity, shall not constitute a waiver
by plaintiff of such protection.

6. In responding to these Requests, the governmment does
not concede that any of the Requests seek relevant evidence. The
government reserves the right to object, on the grounds of
competency, privilege, relevance, materiality, or otherwisge, to
the usé of thig information for any purpose, in whole or in part,
in this action or in any other action.

7. The government objects to these Requests to the extent
that they call for legal conclusions or otherwise attempt to
recést legal igsues as factual matters.

8. The government'objects to any Reguest that employé
imprecise specifications of the information sought on the ground.
that the Request is vague and ambiguous.

9, The claimant’s Requests do not define ﬁhé term
wplaintiff,” and, therefore, the term will be interpreted and
uged herein to mean the govermment.

10. Unless otherwise stated, the government will not

provide any information encompassed by the foregoing objections.

24
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11. The following Responsesg reflect the government’s
present knowledge, information and belief and may be subject to
change or modification based on plaintiff’s furthexr discovery, or
facts or cilrcumstances which may come to the government’s
knowledge. The goveinment gpecifically reserves the right to
further supplement, amend or otherwise revise its Responses to
these Requestse in accordance with Rule 26(e) of the Federal Rules
of Civil Procedure. The govermment has not at thig time fully
completed its discovery and investigation in this action. All
regponges contained herein are based golely upon such information
and evidence as are presently availlable and specifically known to
the government at this time and disclose omnly those factual
contentions and legal conclugions which presently occur to the
government -at thig time. Further discovery, investigatiom,
research and analysis is expected to sﬁpply additional facts, add
meaning to currently known facts, and establish entirely new
factual contentions and legal conclusions, which may lead to
substantial additions or changes to the information provided
herein. The government regervesg the right to add or change any
and all responses herein as additional facts are ascertained,
legal regearch is completed, and analyses are undertaken. The
responges herein are made in a good faith effort to supply as
much information ag is presently known to the government in this
action. In addition, any responses herein to requests regarding
the scope of the government’s ilnvestigation and/or the issues
guch as national origin, religion, or international travel are

made subject to a continuing objection regarding the relevancy to

such requests,
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1 ||REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO, 1:

2 Admit or deny that PLAINTIFF pays the salaries of the
3 ||employees of the United States Postal Inspection Service.

4 ||PLAINTIFE’S RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO, 1:

5 The governmment objects to this Request on the ground that it
6 ||concerns a subject matter that ig irrelevant to any party’s claim
7 ||or defense.

8 || REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 2:

9 Admit or deny that receiving cash in the mail in exchange
10 ||for bitcoins is legal 1f the recipient believes the cash was
11 ||obtained legally.

12 ||PLAINTIFF’ ¢ RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO, 2:

13 The government objects to this Request on the ground that it
14 |lis hypothetical in nature and calls for a legal éonclusion, and/or
15 ||requires the govermment to interpret events to gupport a legal

16 l{conclusion. Without waiving the foregolng ocbjection, the request
17 |lis denied because receiving currency in the mail in exchange for
18 ||bitcoing ig not legal if, inter alia, the recipient has reason to
19 ||know that the currency is derived from an illegal source. The

20 ||request is also denied because the receipt of $15,000 in currency
21 (|in the mail by the éperator of a Money Service Business (“MSB”) is
22 |lnot legal if the currency was derived from an illegal source and
23 ||the operator of the MSB (A) failed to take sufficient affirmative
24 ||steps to verify that said currency was derived from a legal

25 ||source; and/or (B) failed to file a currency transaction report‘in
26 ||connection with the transaction,

27 ||REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 3:

28 Admit or demy that PLAINTIFF has sought but not discovered

70
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1 ||any fact that indicates that CLAIMANT was a party to a transaction
2 ||in violation of 21 USC 841 et seq.

3 || PLAINTIFEF'S RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 3:

4 The government objects to the apparent premise of this

5 ||Request, which is that the govermment is seeking forfeiture of the
6 ||defendant currency on the ground that claimant was a party to a

7 || transaction whereby currency was exchanged for a controlled

8 ||substance in violation of 21 U,S.C, § 841 et seq. The government
9 ||is not alleging at this time that claimant was a party to such a
10 || transaction. The govermment ingtead alleges that claimant knew or
11 ||ghould have known that the defendant currency represents or is
12 ||traceable to proceeds of 1llegal narcotics trafficking, or wasg
13 || intended to be used in one or more exchanges for a controlled
14 || substance or ligted chemical, in violation of 21 U.8.C. § 841 et
15 ||seq. The government accordingly objects to the Request on the

16 ||ground that it concerns a subject matter that is irrelevant to any

17 ||party’s claim or defense.

18 ||REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO, 4:

19 . Admit or demy that CLAIMANT'S expected receipt of cash in the
20 |{lmail from Woodie Ochle in exchange for bitcoing is the basis of

21 || GOVERNMENT 'S contention that CLAIMANT may have been a party to a
22 ||transaction in violation of 21 USC 841 et seq.

23 ||PLAINTIFF’S RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 4:

24 . The government objecﬁs to the apparent premise of this

25 ||Request, which is that the government is seeking forfeiture of the
26 ||defendant currency on the ground that claimant was a party to a

27 ||transaction whereby currency was exchanged for a controlled

28 ||substance in violation of 21 U.S.C, § 84l et seq. The government

6
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is not alleging at this time that claimant was a party to such a
transaction, The govermment ingtead allegeg that claimant knew or
should have known that the defendant currency represents or is
traceable to proceeds of illegal narcotics trafficking, in
violation of 21 U.S.C. § 841 et seq. The government accordingly
objecté to the Request on the ground it concerns a subject matter
that 1g irrelevant to any party’'s claim or defense.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 5:

Admit or demy that all established facts in PLAINTIFF's
possession fail to meet PLAINTIFF's standard to charge CLATIMANT
with any violation of 21 USC 841 et seq.

PLAINTIFEF’S RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR ADMISSTON NO. 5:

The government objects to the apparent premise of this
Request, which ig that the govermment is seeking forfeiture of the
defendant currency on the ground that claimant was a party to a
transaction whereby currency wag exchanged for a controlled
gubstance in violation of 21 U.S.C. § 84i et gseq. The government
ig mot alleging at thisg time that claimant was a party to such a
transaction. The govermment instead alleges that claimant kmnew or
should have known that the defendant currency represents or is
traceable to proceedg of illegal narcotics trafficking, in
violation of 21 U.S.C. § 841 et seq. The government accordingly
objects to the Request on the ground it concerns a subject matter
that ig irrelevant to any party’s claim or defense.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 63

Admit or deny that there is no evidence that CLAIMANT was a

party to a tramsaction in violation of 21 USC 841l et seq.

/17
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1 || PLAINTIFF’S RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 6:

2 The government objects to the apparent premise of this

3 ||Request, which is that the government is seeking forfeiture of the
4 ||defendant currency on the ground that claimant was a party to a

5 || transaction whereby currency was exchanged for a controlled

6 ||substance in violation of 21 U.S.C. § 841 et geq. The government
7 ||ig not alleging at thig time that claimant was a party to such a

8 ||transaction. The government instead alleges that claimant knew or
9 || should have known that the defendant currency represents or isg
10 ||traceable to proceeds of illegal narcotics trafficking, in
11 ||violation of 21 U.S.C. § 841 et seq. The government accordingly
12 ||objects to the Request on the ground it concerns a subject matter
13 ||that ig irrelevant to any party’s claim or defense,

14 ||REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 7;

15 Admit or demy that U.S. currency is still in circulation

16 ||that hasg enough traces of controlled substances or listed

17 ||chemicals for a trained narcotics canine such as “Chewy” to alert
18 |[to a package that contains it.

19 ||PLAINTIFEF’S RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 7:

20 || The govermment objects to the apparent premise of this

21 |{|{Request, which is that a trained narcotics detection canine

22 |lalerts to “traces of marcoticg.” Properly trained canines alert
23 |{to quickly-digsipating odors or byproducts of controlled

24 ||substances, so that a pogitive canine alert to currency (or a

25 ||package containing currency) comnstitutes evidence that the

26 ||currency has been in recent contact with a controlled substance.
27 ||The government further objects to this Request on the ground that

28 |lit is overbroad to the extent it calls for an admission about the

4
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capabilities of narcotics detection canines other than “Chewy.”

The government Ffurther objects to this Request on the ground that
it is vague, ambiguoug and overbroad in terms of its reference to
an unspecified amount of United States currency “still in
circulation” that may have traces of controlled substances, The
government further objects to this Request on the ground that ghe
effort required to obtain the information sought ig not
proportional to the needs of the case considering the importance
of the issues at stake in the action, the amocunt in controversgy,
the parties’ resgources, the importagce of theldiscovery in
regsolving the issue, and whether the burden and expense of the
propoged discovery outweighs its likely benefit.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 8:

Admit or demy that trained narcotics canines guch as “Chewy”
can detect controlled substances and listed chemicalg in amounts
too small for average human beings to detect,

PLAINTIFF'S RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 8:

The government objects to the apparent premige of this
Request, which isg that a trained narcotics detection canine
alerts to “controlled substances and listed chemicals.” Properly
trained canines alert to quickly-dissipating odors or byproducts
of controlled substances, so that a positive canine alert to
currency (or a package containing currency) constitutes evidence
that the currency has been in recent contact with a controlled
substance, The government Ffurther objectg to this Request on the
ground that it is overbroad to the extent it calls for an
admission about the capabilities of narcoticsg detection canines

other than “Chewy.” The government further objects to this
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Request on the ground the effort reguired to ob;ain the
information sought isg mot proportional to the needs of the case
congldering the importance of the iggues at stake in the action,
the amount in controversgy, the partieg’ regources, the importance
of the digcovery in resolving the issue, and whether the burden
and expense of the proposed discovery outweighs its likely
benefit.

REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 9:

Adwmit or deny that PLAINTIFF seeks help from CLAIMANT to
egtablish whether or not CLAIMANT has ever been a party to a
trangaction in violation of 21 USC 841 et geq.

PLAINTIFF’S RESPONSE TO REQUEST FOR ADMISSION NO. 9:

The government objects to this Request on the ground that it
ig wvague, ambiguous, and unintelligible with resgpect to the term
“geeksg help.” The govermment further objects to an apparent
premige of this Request, which ls that the government is seeking
c¢laimant’s “help” by serving discovery requests on him. The
gservice of a discovery request doeg not constitute a request fox
help, but is instead a request for evidence relevant to the claims
and/or defenses of the party upon whom the iequest is gerved. The
government further objects to another apparent premise of this
Request, which is that the government is seeking forfeiture of the
defendant currency on the ground that cléimant wag a party to a
trangaction whereby currency was exchanged for a controlled
substance in violation of 21 U.S8.C. § 841 et seq. The government
ig not alleging at thig time that claimant was a party to a
transaction. The governmment instead allegeg that claimant knew or

ghould have known the defendant currency represents or is

, Lo
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traceable to proceeds of illegal narcotics trafficking, in
violation of 21 U.8.C., § 841 et geq,

The government accordingly objects to the Request on the ground
that it concerng a gubject matter that is irrelevant to any

party’s claim or defense.

DATED: October 13, 2016 ETTEEN M. DECKER
United States Attorney
LAWRENCE S, MIDDLETON
Asggigtant United States Attormey
Chief, Criminal Division
STEVEN R. WELK
Aggigtant United States Attorney
Chief, Agset Forfelture

FRANK P. KORTUM
Aggigtant United States Attorney
Asset Porfeiture Section

Attorneys for Plaintiff
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

11
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1 PROOF OF SERVICE BY MAILING

2 I am over the age of 18 and not a party to the within

3 [laction. I am employed by the Office of the United States

4 ||Attorney, Central District of California. My business address
5 |]ig 312 North Spring Street, 1l4th Floor, Log Angeleg, California
6 ||90012. )

7 On October 13, 2016, I served a copy of PLAINTIFF'S

8 RESPONSE TO FIRST SET OF REQUESTS FOR ADMISSIONS PROPOUNDED BY
9 ||CLAIMANT DAVID SCOTESE on each person or entity named below by
10 ||enclosing a copy in an envelope addresged as shown below and

11 ||placing the envelope for collection and wmailing on the date and
12 Hlat the place shown below following our ordinary office

13 ||practices,

14 ||To: David Scotese

15 ’

16

_ X I am readily familiax with the practice of this office for

17 collection and processing correspondence for mailing. On the
18 same day that correspondence is placed for collection and

19 mailing, 1t is deposited in the ordinary course of business with
20 the United States Postal Servicé in a sealed envelope with
21 postage fully prepaid.
210 I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the
23 United States of America that the foregoing is true and correct.
24 T declare that I am employed in the office of a wmember of
25 the bar of this court at whose direction the service was made.
26 Executed on: October 13, 2016 at Losg eles, Callfornla.
2 e
28 "KogTle Agsalog
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dscotese on LocalBitcoins.com ‘ Page 1 of 4

dscotese

| DO NOT use steamcommunity.com. impostors abound. Be carefull
Pgp: http://goo.giMQTNmx :

Malling List; http:/feepurl.com/Pp7jf

Archives at http://goo.gliMzJC8S

PMs to BTC - see my ads

Visit dscotese's homepage  (hitp:/feepurl.com/Pp7]f)

lnformatidn on dscotese

Trade volume
~Higher than 150 BTC
Number of confirmed trades
3000+ '
...with 1520 different partners
Feedback score
100 %
Real name verification
4 trusted verifications, 1 verifications, 0 rejected verifications  (/guides/real-name)
First purchase .
3 years, 7 months ago (2013-04-03T12:41:39+00.00)

Account created

3 years, 9 months ago (2013-01-14T01:35:566:++00:00)

Last seen

1 minute ago (2016-11-07T21:46:08+00:00)

Language
English
Email

Verified 6 months ago (2016-05-06T15:44:28+00;00)

Phone number

Verified 3 years, 5 months ago (2013-05~16T19:02:06+00;00)

ID, Passport or Driver’s license -

Verified 1 year, 7 mopths ago (2015-03-15722:32:21+00:00)

Trust

https://localbitcoins.com/accounts/profile/dscotese/ : 11/7/2016
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dscotese on LocalBitcoins.com

Trusted by 500+ people
Blocks )
Blocked by 0 people

Pro Trader

Please

log in (faccounts/login/) or

Document 39-8 Filed 01/12/17 Page 3 of 5 Page ID #:467

Page 2 of 4

Trust dscotese |

sign up (/register/) to give your trust to dscotese.

Signing up Is free and takes only 30 seconds,

Seller escrow release times 3

Median: 2034 min

Average: 2411 min

Report this user {/support/request/?indicator=7-2n&User name=dscotese)

Buy bitcoins online from dscotese

Seller

Price/ Limits
BTC

Payment
method

dscotese (3000+; 100%) (/accounts/profile/dscotese/)

Cash

deposit:

(/buy-

bitcoins-
onlinefcash- 752.91
deposity  USD
M&T, Click

for

discounts &

options,

Buy (/ad/20948/purch:

dscotese (3000+; 100%) (/accounts/profile/dscotese/)

.h’ctps://10calbitcoins.com/accounts/proﬁle/dscotesé/

Cash by
mail (/buy-
bitcoins~
onlinefcash-
by-mailf)

500 -
4380
Usp

729.98
usb

11/7/2016
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dscotese on LocalBitcoins.com ‘ Page 3 of 4

Cashby
mail (bwy- 3931 1.8

dscotese (3000+; 100%) {faccounts/profile/dscotesef)  bitcoins- .
. G XAG
online/cash-

by-mailf)

"~ Cash by
mail (fbuy- 0.55

dscotese (3000+; 100%) (faccounts/profile/dscotese/)  bitcoins- X.AU XAU
online/cash-

by-mail/)

Show all user's ads to buy bitcoins online {{faccounts/profile/dscotese/buy-bitcoins-online/)

Buy bitcoins with cash from dscotese

Seller . Distance Location Price:

dscotese (3000+; 100%) (/ad/282966/buy-bitcoins-with-cash-columbi, okm  Sombla, 755
scotese (; : b} (fa uy-bitcoins-with-cash-columbia-mo-usa) MO, USA USD

Corona, 7484

e htemine sdthocach. .
dscotese (3000+; 100%) (/ad/378839/buy-bitcoins-with-cash-corona-ca-usa) . 0 km CA USA USD
' . : ‘ . San 748.%
dscotese (3000+; 100%) (/ad/378843/buy-bitcoins-with-cash-san-marcos-ca-usa) 0 km Marcos,
. usb
. CA USA
» 92563,

‘ ! ta, 729.
dscotese (3000+; 100%) (/ad/14374/buy-bitcoins-with-cash-92663-murrista-united-states) 0 km mﬂﬁi & USD

States

Show all user's ads to buy bitcoins with cash (faccounts/profile/dscotese/buy-bitcoins-with-cash/)

Feedback
Feedback left by users with noticeable trade volume.

July 16, 2015, 10:37 a.m.

[:] perfect

Feb. 3, 2016, 11:53 a.m.
(] Awesome as always

July 23, 2013, 1:03 a.m,
(] Quick and easy

March 9, 2015, 3:03 p.m.

Nov. 17,2014, 11:04 am. .
(] Quick, fast, and excellent pricing. Aiways my go to.

.. ses  more feedback for dscotese (/accounislproﬁle/dscotese/feedbackl)

https://localbitcoins,com/accounts/profile/dscotese/ _ ' 11/7/2016
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dscotese on LocalBitcoins.com ’ Page 4 of 4

ABOUT
About us (fabout)

Careers {/careers)
Terms of service (fterms_of_service/)
Security bounties (/whitehat)
Statistics (/statistics)
SUPPORT .
Contact support (/supportirequest/)
Forgot password (/password_reset/) -
Lost two-factor (/fagicp-2fa-not-working)
Report phishing {(/support/request/?indicator=2h-2i)

FAQ (/faq)
SERVICES
English

API (/apl-docsf)
LocalBitcoins ATM (Iatm/order—your—own-bltcoln-étm)
. Affiliate (/affiliate/) :

Block Explorer (https://chain.localbitcoins.com) )
FOLLOW US ) . ' .
Facebook (https:/iwww.facebook.com/pages/Localbitcoinscom/2668499200862747notif_t=page_new_jikes)

Twitler (hitps:i/fiwitter.com/LocalBitcolns)

Google+ (hitps://plus.google.com/s/localbitcoins)
Reddlt (http://www.reddlt.com/iflocalbitcoins/)

IRC (firc)

Blog (http://localbitcoins.blogspot.com/)

Chinese Blog (hitp://www.welbo.com/localbitcoins/)

https://localbitcoins.com/accounts/profile/dscotese/ , ‘ 11/7/2016
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Browse feedback for dscotese . ) Page 1 of 3

Browse feedback for dscotese

. All: 1180 (faccounts/profile/dscotese/feedback/) « Positive: 1168
(faccounts/profile/dscotese/feedback/positive/) » Neutral: 12
(/accounts/profile/dscotese/feedback/neutrall) » Negative: O
(faccounts/profile/dscotese/feedback/negative/)

" | 1| 2(%page=2). 3 (7page=3) 4 (?page=4) = 5 (?page=5) | 6 (?page=6)

5‘7(?page=7)_-_ 8 (?page=8) 9 (?page=9) ‘ 10 (?page=10) 11 (?page=11)

12 (?page=12) . 13 (?page=13) | 14 (?page=14) 15 (?page=15) | 16 (?page=16) :
| — (?page=2)

17 (?page=17) : 18 (?page=18) 19 (?page=19) 20 (?page=20)

Nov. 5, 2016, 7:14 p.m. )
[:] Terrific customer service! Prompt & proactive communication! Multiple fair deals over several
months. Timely escrow releases! A+! Always a pleasure!

Nov. 2, 2016, 10:50 p.m.

]

Nov. 1, 2016, 10:40 p.m.

Nov. 1, 20186, 6:02 p.m.

[:] Top-Notch] Extremely professional, helpful and responsive. Also VERY fast. My preferred vendor

- highest recommendation.

Oct, 30, ‘2016. 12:37 p.m.
[:] Good frader, | made a small mistake myself on the first trade. 2nd one was smooth.
Recommended trader

Oct. 30, 2016, 10:02 am. -
[:] easy comms and quickly released coins

Oct, 30, 2016, 12:45 a.m.
(] great and extremely trust worthy....i will deal with him anytime with my eyes closed.-3kachidu

Oct. 30, 2016, 12:45 a.m.
(] Quick trade, went well. -

Oct, 30, 2016, 12:04 a.m.

s
hitps://localbitcoins.com/accounts/profile/dscotese/feedback/ .  11/7/2016
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Browse feedback for dscotese Page 2 of 3

QOct. 29, 2016, 1:57 a.m.

(" Jthank you

Oct. 26, 20186, 2:48 a.m..
[:] Excellent trade, fast release and great communication. Trade with confidence with dscotesel

Oct, 25, 2016, 11:47 p.m.

]

Oct, 25, 2016, 10:06 p.m.

J

Oct, 24, 2016, 11:04 p.m. _
D Great transaction thanks 10/10

Oct. 24, 2016, 8:22 p.m.
() a++ fast trader will use again!!

Oct. 24, 2016, 7:55 p.m.
[:] Awesome vendor will return

Oct. 24, 2016, 7:31 p.m.

Oct. 24, 2016, 7:.09 p.m.
[ Will do biz with again.

Oct. 23, 2016, 4:49 p.m.
D Good trader WI” cortinue to do business wnth )

Oct, 21, 2016, 7:22 a.m.
(] Sent bitcoins the same day as the cash arrived, PERFECT! Thanks Davel

e 2(?page~2) 3(7page~3) 4(‘7page ) 5(’?page=5) 6(?page=6)

i 7(’?page“7) ('?page=8) (’Ppage—Q) 10(’?page~10) 11 (’?page"ﬂ)

12(7page—12) 13(’?page 13) 14 (?page—14) ' 15(?page=15) 16(’?page~16)

1 (?page—-'l?) 18(’?page~18) 19(?page~19) . 20 (?_page=20) ' —>(?page~2)

a@ Lccc:xlBrtcams com

ABOUT
About us (Iabout)

Careers (/careers)

Tetms of service (/terms_of_service/)

https://localbitcoins.com/accounts/profile/dscotese/feedback/ 11/7/2016
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Browse feedback for dscotese o Page 3 of 3

Security bounties (/whitehat)
~ Statistics (/statistics)

SUPPORT .
Contact support (/support/request/)
Forgot password (/password_reset/)
Lost two-factor (fag#cp-2fa-not-working)
Repott phishing (/supportirequest/?indicator=2h-2i)
FAQ (ffaq) |

SERVICES

English

API (/api-docs/)
LocalBitcoins ATM (/atm/order-your-own-bitcoin-atm)
Affiliate (/affiliate/)

- Block Explorer (https://chain.localbitcoins.com)
FOLLOW US

Facebook (https://www.facebook.com/pages/Localbitcoinscom/2668499200862747
notif_t=page_new_likes)

Twitter (hitps:/twitter.com/LocalBitcoins)
Google+ (https://plus.google.com/s/localbitcoins)
Reddit (hitp://www.reddit.com/r/localbitcoins/)
IRC (fir)

Blog (http://localbitcoins. blogspot.comy)

Chinese Blog (http://www.weibo.com/ocalbitcoins/)

hitps://localbitcoins.com/accounts/profile/dscotese/feedback/ ' 11/7/2016
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Certified: 7015 3010 0001 9119 7625

USPIS Asset Forfeiture , Margh 2, 2016
1. Hasfurter Dave Scotese
PO Box 91100

Washington, DC 20090-1100 201G HAR -8 PH |1 oy
p A Murrieta, CA 92563
SSET FORFEIT
Passible Claim for Seil},"gg' Pr mmr ly

Re: Seizure ¥ 243-16-023, Asset ID ff 16-USP-000679, Tracking Number EL337571018US containing 415,000 in U.S. currency
Dear |, Hasfurter,

Your letters {certified receipt # 7015 1730 0000 2768 9181} indicate that my intent was not clear tn my last letter, certified tracking
number7015 3000 0007 9119 7847, My intent was to collect information and to clalm that:

& USPIS has my property,
"« The property Is not subject to forfeiture according to 21 USC 881(a)

My intent was also to demand by right that USPIS return $15,000 to me, Here are some questions that should make my intent to
collect Informatlon clearer: :

1. s the bellef of one or more men or women that the property seized meéts the requirements of 21 USC 881(a) enough
. evidence for your organization to proceed with this forfeiture? .
2. What is the name of the man (or woman or the names of the men and/or women), If any, holding the belief that the
property seized meets the requirements of 21 USC 881(a)?
3.  What s the name of the man or woman who violated 21 USC 841 et seq.?
4. How long does the USPIS expect it totake to determine whether or not the property selzed meets the requirements of 2
usc 881la)?

| also require information from you so that | may create a document titled “Clalm for Seized Propenty” as your letter explains,
admitting that it is selzed property, but denying that it can be forfeited under 21 USC 811:

5. 1s7$15,0001n US. currency” a complete description of the property seized in Selzure # 243-16-023¢

6. Whatwas the date and place of Selzure # 243-16-0237?

7. s “The sender Intended to furnish the currency to me in exchange forbitcoin, The bitcolmhas already been furnished to
the sénder, so the $15,000 rightfully belongs fo me and should have been in my hands on the scheduled delivery day for
this package, January 13, 2016." an adequate description of my Interest in the property?

If the answers to questions 5 and 7 above are both “yes” and the date and place of the eizure was January 20“‘, 2016, and the place
was Redlands, CA, please conslder this letter as my formal Clalm for Selzed Property. I not, | have one last request:

s Please clarify which of items S - 7 | need to flx and in what way it or they are deflcient.

| found.an Ingrid Hasfurter In Washington D.C. Metro Area {on LinkedIn) 8nd wondered If you are the saine person. I'sell alot of
bitcoin In return for cash in the mall from trusted people, so your afflliation with the USPIS (along with Joe Bennettand Mike
Dawson) might prove valuable to me in the future, If you are Ingrid, or you'd like to connectin some way out ofyour official
capacity, feel free to look me up, ar lét me know and | will use Uinkedin’s connection feature,

Thank you for your help In this matter,
e Gt i# e o A e
Al 4 sy 1 i!s GEVLE ’{j ( fb/i K o -‘!‘ J‘jﬁ,,é"{ Li 8 ” {Afw’,(v ('M./‘ EAY { _4’1 I_',J‘ A;,.: ’v‘*ﬁl‘( ‘{_.'J;_ RETAT

;
- . Al ’ 4 }
. - ", . (. "y “
AR S gty :’ T 3 ' Sis ! : . ??»r'wl- J'“i#'-' ’

Dave Scotese,
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Depariment of the Treasury
Financial Crimes Enforcement Nelwork

Guidance

FIN-2013-G001
Issued: March 18, 2013

Subject:  Application of FinCEN’s Regulations to Persons Administering,
Exchanging, or Using Virtual Currencies

The Financial Crimes Enforcement Network (“FinCEN) is issuing this interpretive
guidance to clarify the applicability of the regulations implementing the Bank Sectecy Act
(“BSA*) to petsons creating, obtaining, distributing, exchanging, aceepting, or transmitting
virtual currencies.’ Such persons are referréd to in this guidance as “users,” “administrators,”
and “exchangers,” all as defined below.® A user of virtual currency is no an MSB under
FinCEN’s regulations and therefore is not subject to MSB registration, reporting, and
recordkeeping regulations. Howevert, an administrator or exchanger is an MSB under FinCEN’s

regulations, specifically, a money transmitter, unless a limitation to or exemption from the
definition applies.to the person. An administrator or exchanger is not a provider or seller of
prepaid access, or a dealer in foreign exchange, under FinCEN’s regulations.

Currency vs, Virtual Currency

FinCEN’s regulations define currency (also referred to as “real” currency) as “the coin
and paper money of the United States or of any other country that [i] is designated as legal tender
and-that [ii] circulates and [iii] is customarily used and accepted as a medium of exchange in the
country of issuarice.”® In contrast to real currency, “virtual” currency is a medium of exchange
that operates like a currency in some environments, but does not have all the attributes of real
currency. In particular, virtual cutrency does not have legal tender status in any jurisdiction.
This guidance addresses “convertible” vittual currency. This type of virtual currency either has
an equivalent value in real cutrency, or acts as a substitute for real currency.

! FinCEN is issuing this guidance under its authority to administer the Bank Secrecy Act. See Treasury Order 180~
01 (March 24, 2003). This guidance explains only how FinCEN characterizes certain activities involving virtual
currencies under the Bank Secrecy Act and FinCEN regulations, It should not be interpreted as a statement by
FinCEN about the extent to which those activities comport with other federal or state statutes, rules, regulations, or
orders.

2 FinCEN’s regulations define “person” as “an individual, a corporation, a partnership, a trust or estats, a joint stock
company, an association, a syndicate, joint venturs, or other unincorporated organization or group, an Indian Tribe
(as that term is defined in the Indian Gaming Regulatory Act), and all entities cognizable as legal personalities.” 31
CFR § 1010.100(mum).

331 CFR § 1010.100(m).

www.fincen.goy
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Background

On Iuly 21,2011, FinCEN published a Final Rule amendlng definitions and other
regulations relating to money services businesses (“MSBs”).* Among other thmgs, the MSB
Rule amends the definitions of dealers in foreign exchange (formetly referred to as “curtency
dealers and exchangers™) and money transmitters. On July 29, 2011, FinCEN published a Final
Rule on Definitions and Other Regulations Relating to Prepaid Access (the “Prepaid Access
Rule”). This guidance explains the regulatory treatment under these deﬁmtlons of persons
engaged in virtual currency transactions,

Definitions of User, Exchanger, and Administrator

This guidance refers to the partlclpants in genenc virtual currency arrangements, using
the terms “user,” “exchanger,” and “admunstrator "5 A user is a person that obtains virtual
currency to purchase goods or services. " An exchanger is a person engaged as a business in the
exchange of virtual cutrency for real currency, funds, or other virtual currency. An
administrator is a person engaged as a business in issuing (putting into circulation) a virtual
currency, and who has the authority to redeem (to withdraw from circulation) such virtual
currency.

Users of Virtual Currency

A user who obtalns convertible virtual currency and uses itto puwhase real or virtual
goods or services is nof an MSB under FinCEN’s regula’aons. Such activity, in and of itself,
does not fit within the definition of “money transmission services” and therefore is not subject to
FinCEN’s registration, reporting, and recordkeeping regulations for MSBs.”

* Bank Secrecy et Regulations — Definitions and Other Regulations Relating to Money Services Businesses, 76 FR
43585 (July 21, 2011) (the “MSB Rule”). This defines an MSB as “a person wherever located doing business,
whether or not on a regular basis or as an organized or licensed business concern, wholly or in substantial part
within the United States, in one or more of the capacities listed in paragraphs (ff)(1) through (££)(7) of this section,
This includes but is not limited to maintenance of any agent, agency, branch, or office within the United States.” 31
CFR § 1010.100(f5).

3 Final Rule - Definitions and Other Regulations Relating to Prepaid Access, 76 R 45403 (July 29, 2011),
¢ These terms are used for the exclusive purpose of this regulatory guidance. Depending on the type and

] combmaﬁon of a person’s activities, one person may be acting in more than one of these capacities.

" How a person engages in “obtaining” a virtual currency may be described using any number of other terms, such as

“earning,” “harvesting,” *mining,” “creating,” “auto-generating,” “manufacturing,” or “purchasing,” depending on
the details of the specific virtual currency model involved. For purposes of this guidance, the label applied o a
particular process of obtaining a virtual currency is not material fo the legal characterization under the BSA of the
prooess ot of the persou engaging in the process.
¥ As noted above, this should not be interpreted as a statement about the extent to which the user’s activities comport
with other federal or state statutes, tules, regulations, or orders. For example, the activity may still be subject to
abuse in the form of trade-based money laundering or terrorist financing. The activity may follow the same patterns
of behavior observed in the “real” economy with respect to the purchase of “real” goods and services, such as
systematic over- or under-invoicing or infleted transaction fees or commissions,
%31 CER § 1010.100(£6)(1-7).
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Administrators and ¥xchangers of Virtual Currency

An administrator or exchanger that (1) accepts and transmits a convertible virtual
currency ot (2) buys or sells convertible virtual currency for any reason is a money transmitter
under F mCEN’s regulations, unless a limitation to or exemption from the definition applies to
the person.'® FinCEN’s regulatlons define the term “money transmitter” as a person that
provides money transmission services, or any other person engaged in the transfer of funds. The
term “money transmission services” means “the acceptance of currency, funds, or other value
that substitutes for currency from one person and the transmission of currency, funds, or other
value that substitutes for currency to another location or person by any means.”

The definition of a money transmitter does not differentiate between real currencies and
convertible virtual currencies. Accepting and transmitting anything of value that substitutes for
currency makes a person a money transmitter under the regulations implementing the BSA., 12
FinCEN has reviewed different activities involving virtual currency and has made determinations
regarding the appropriate regulatoty treatment of administrators and exchangers under three
scenatios: brokers and dealers of e-currencies and e-precious metals; centralized convertible
virtual cutrencies; and de-centralized convertible virtual currencies,

a. E-Currencies and E-Precious Metals
The first type of activity involves electronic trading in e-currencies or e-precious

metals.> Tn 2008, FinCEN issued guidance stating that as long as a broker or dealer in real
currency or other commodities accepts and transmits funds solely for the purpose of effecting a

.bona fide purchase or sale of the real currency or other commodities for or with a customer, such

person is not acting as a money transmitter under the regulations,™

However, if the broker or dealer transfers funds between a customer and a third party that
is not part of the cutrency or commodity transaction, such transmission of funds is no longer a
fundamental element of the actual transaction necessary to execute the contract for the purchase
or sale of the currency or the other comumodity. This scenario is, therefore, money

1% FinCEN’s regulations provide that whether a person is a money transmitter is a matter of facts and circumstances.
The regulations identify six circumstances under which a person is not a money transmitter, despite accepting and
transmitting currency, funds, or value that substitutes for currency. 31 CFR § 1010.100(£)(5)({)(A)-(F).
31 CPR § 1010.100(fH)(5)(1)(A).

2 Ibid.

12 Typlcally, this involves the broker or dealer elestronically distributing digital certificates of ownershlp of real
currencies or precious metals, with the digital certificate being the virtual currency. However, the same conclusions
would apply in the case of the broker or dealer issuing paper ownership certificates or manifesting customer
ownership or control of real curtencies or comimodities in an account statement or any other form, These
conclusions would also apply in the case of a broker or dealer in commodities other than real currencies or précious
metals, A broker or dealer of e-currencies or e-precious metals that engages in money transmission could be either
an administrator or exchanger depending on its business model.

¥ dpplication of the Definition of Money Transmitter to Brokers and Dealers in Currency and other Commodities,
FIN-2008-G008, Sept. 10, 2008. The guidance also notes that the definition of money transmitter excludes any
person, such as a fitures commission merchant, that is “registered with, and regulated or examined by...the
Commodity Putures Trading Commission.”

74
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transmission.”® Examples include, in part, (1) the transfer of funds between a customer and a

third patty by permitting a third party to fund a customer’s account; (2) the transfer of value from
a customer’s currency or commodity position to the account of another customer; or (3) the
closing out of a customet’s cutrency ot commodity position, with a transfer of proceeds to a third -
party. Since the definition of a money transmitter does not differentiate between real currencies
and convertible virtual curtencies, the same rules apply to brokers and dealers of e-currency and
e-precious metals,

b Centralized Virtual Currencies

The second type of activity involves a convettible virtual currency that has a centralized
repository. The administrator of that repository will be a money transmitter to the extent that it
allows transfers of value between petsons or from one location to another. This conclusion
applies, whether the value is denominated in a real currency or a convertible virtual currency. In
addition, any exchanger that uses its access to the convertible virtual currency services provided
by the administrator to accept and transmit the convertible virtual currency on behalf of others,
including transfers intended to pay a third party for virtual goods and services, is also a money
transmitter.

FinCEN understands that the exchanger’s activities may take one of two forms, The first
form involves an exchanger (acting as a “seller” of the convertible virtual currency) that accepts
real currency or its equivalent from a user (the “purchaser”) and transmits the value of that real
currency to fund the user’s convertible virtual currency account with the administrator. Under
FinCEN’s regulations, sending “value that substitutes for currency” to another person or to
another location constitutes money transmission, unless a limitation to or exemption from the
definition applies.!® This circumstance constitutes transmission to another location, namely
from the user’s account at one location (e.g., a user’s real currency account at a bank) to the
user’s convertible virtual currency account with the administrator. It might be argued that the
exchanger is entitled to the exemption from the definition of “money transmitter” for persons
involved in the sale of goods or the provision of services. Under such an argument, one might
assert that the exchanger is merely providing the service of connecting the user to the
administrator and that the transmission of value is integral to this service. However, this
exemption does not apply when the only services being provided are money transmission
services, ’

The second form involves a de facto sale of convertible virtual currency that is not
completely transparent. The exchanger accepts currency or its equivalent from a user and
privately credits the user with an appropriate portion of the exchanger’s own convertible virtnal
currency held with the administrator of the repository. The exchanger then transmits that

'3 In 2011, FInCEN amended the definition of money transmitter. The 2008 guidance, however, was primarily
concerned with the core elements of the definition — accepting and transmitting currency or value — and the
exemption for acceptance and transmission integral to another transaction not involving money transmission. The
2011 amendments have not materially changed these aspects of the definition.

16 See footnote 11 and adjacent text.

1731 CFR §-1010.100(f)(5)GD)(E).
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internally credited value to third parties at the user’s direction. This constitutes transmission o
another person, namely each third party to which transmissions are made at the user’s direction.
To the extent that the convertible virtual currency is generally understood as a substitute for real
currencies, transmitting the convertible virtual curtency at the direction and for the benefit of the
user constitutes money transmission on the part of the exchanger. .

¢ De-Centralized Virtual Currencies

A final type of convertible virtual currency activity involves a de-centralized convertible
vittual currency (1) that has no central repository and no single administrator, and (2) that
persons may obtain by their own computing or manufacturing effort.

A person that creates units of this convertible virtual currency and uses it to purchase real
or virtual goods and setvices is a user of the convertible virtual currency and not subject to
regulation as a money transmitter. By contrast, a person that creates units of convertible virtual
currency and sells those units to another person for real currency or its equivalent is engaged in
transmission to another location and is a money transmitter. In addition, a person is an
exchanger and a money transmitter if the person accepts such de-centralized convertible virtual
currency from one person and transmits it to another person as part of the acceptance and transfer
of currency, funds, or other value that substitutes for currency.

Providers and Sellers of Prepaid Aécess

A person’s aceeptance and/or transmission of convertible virtual cutrency cannot be
characterized as providing or selling prepaid access because prepaid access is limited to real
to |
cutrencies. :

Dealers in Foreign Exchange

A person must exchange the cutrency of two or more countries to be considered a dealer
in foreign exchange.'® Virtual currency does not meet the criteria to be considered “currency”
undet the BSA, because it is not legal tender, Therefore, a person who accepts real curtency in

18 This is true even if the person holds the value accepted for a period of time before transmitting some or all of that
value at the direction of the person from whom the value was originally accepted, FinCEN’s regulations define
“prepaid access” as “access to funds or the value of funds that have been paid in advance and can be retrioved or
transferred at some point in'the future through an electronic device or vehicle, such as a card, code, electronic serial
number, mobile identification number, or personal identification number,” 31 CER § 1010,100(ww). Thus,
“prepaid access” under FinCEN’s regulations is limited to “access to fimds or the value of funds.” IfFinCEN had
intended prepaid access to cover funds denominated in a virtual currency or something else that substitutes for real
currency, it would have used language in the definition of prepaid access like that in the definition of money
transmission, which expressly includes the acceptance and transmission of “other value that substitutes for
cutrency,” 31 CFR § 1010.100(f5)(5)(i) .

19 FinCEN defines a “dealer in foreign exchange” as a “person that accepts the cutrency, or other monetary
instruments, funds, or other instruments denominated in the currency, of one or more countries in exchange for the
currency, or other monetary instraments, funds, or other instruments denominated in the currency, of one or more
other countries in an amount greater than $1,000 for any other person on any day in one or more transactions,
whether ot not for same-day delivery.” 31 CFR § 1010.100(f)(1).

QL
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exchange for virtual currency, or vice versa, is not a dealer in foreign exchange under FinCEN’s
regulations. ‘

%ok ok ok ok

Financial institutions with questions about this guidance or other matters related to
compliance with the implementing regulations of the BSA may contact FinCEN’s Regulatory
Helpline at (800) 949-2732.

7
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
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Pursuant to Rule 56 of the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure and
Rule 56-1 of the Local Rules of Practice for the Central District of
California, the Court issues i1ts Statement of Uncontroverted Facts
and Conclusions of Law.

I.
UNCONTROVERTED FACTS

1. On January 20, 2016, $15,000 in U.S. Currency was seized by
the United States Postal Inspection Service pursuant to a search
warrant issued by a United States Magistrate Judge. Verified
Complaint Y 9.

2. Plaintiff United States of America (the “government”) filed
a civil forfeirture complaint against the defendant currency on June
3, 2016. Dkt. 1. David Scotese served a claim that this Court (at
the request of the government) deemed filed on July 11, 2016. Dkt.
15.

3. Scotese has asserted that his interest in the defendant
currency arose when he sent 32 Bitcoins (a form of virtual currency)
to Woodie Ochle in exchange for the defendant currency. Kortum Decl.
T 2 & Exh. “A” at p. 4:20-22 (response to Special Interrogatory No.
3). At the time of the transaction, Ochle was the subject of a drug
trafficking iInvestigation that led to his arrest in April of 2016.
Verified Complaint § 10.

4. In Scotese’s verified response to the government’s request
for documents reflecting his registration of his bitcoin exchange
business with FInCEN, he affirmatively stated that “if 1 remember
correctly, | have not made any such registration” (Kortum Decl. 7 5 &
Exh. “D” at p.7:20-22). Scotese failed to provide any documents
reflecting that he had registered his bitcoin exchange business with

2
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FINCEN. Scotese verified the response under penalty of perjury.
Exh. “D” at p. 8

5. Scotese also made statements i1n discovery demonstrating
that he considered his bitcoin exchanges to be a business activity.
Specifically, Scotese’s discovery responses confirm statements
appearing on one of his websites about how to make money from
bitcoins. Kortum Decl. 1 3-4 & Exhs. “B” (Requests for Admissions)
& “C” (Response to Requests for Admissions). For example, in his
responses to the government’s Requests for Admission, Scotese
confirmed his website statement that “[d]ealing bitcoin supports my
life and family. 1d. Exh. “C” at p. 1-2 (confirming accuracy of
statements appearing iIn Exhibit “A” to RFAs).

6. Another website referenced iIn Scotese’s discovery responses
contains his schedule of bitcoin exchange rates and states that
Scotese has made over 3,000 confirmed trades with “1,499 different
partners.” Kortum Decl. § 8 & Exh. “G”. Scotese cited the website
in his response to the government’s request for production of
documents. Exh. “D” at p. 5:25 (citing
https://localbitcoins.com/accounts/profile/dscotese/). Comments from
“users with noticeable trade volume” regarding the quality of the
Scotese’s bitcoin exchange service appear in the feedback section of
this website. Id. 71 9 & Exh. *“H”.

7. Scotese sent a letter to a Postal Service employee iIn
connection with the seizure of the defendant currency. In the letter
Scotese stated that “I sell a lot of bitcoin in return for cash .

.7 and suggested that doing business unofficially with the employee
“might prove valuable to me in the future.” 1d. T 10 Exh. “I1”.
8. The government filed a motion on October 13, 2016, for

3



https://localbitcoins.com/accounts/profile/dscotese/

© 00 N o o A~ W N P

N N N N N N N NN R P R R R R B Rp R R
o N o oo A WN P O ©W 0o N oo o0 WOWDN B O

G

ase 5:16-cv-01166-DSF-KK  Document 39-12 Filed 01/12/17 Page 4 of 9 Page ID #:487

leave to amend its complaint to allege that the defendant currency
was subject to forfeiture on the additional ground that that i1t was
the proceeds of Scotese’s operation of an unlicensed money
transmitting business. Dkt. 21.

9. On November 29, 2016, this Court granted the motion for
leave to amend. Dkt. 36.

10. On November 30, 2016, the government filed its amended
complaint. Dkt. 37.

11. The amended complaint alleges that the defendant currency
constitutes proceeds of, or was otherwise involved in, one or more
transactions conducted in violation of 18 U.S.C. 8 1960, and 1is
therefore forfeitable pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 981(a)(1)(A) and (C).
1d. 1 13.

12. To the extent that any Statements of Uncontroverted Fact
contained herein can be considered to be or are deemed to be
conclusions of law, they are incorporated by reference into the
conclusions of law.

1.
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
1. This is a civil forfeiture action brought pursuant to 18

U.S.C. § 981(a)(1)(A) & (C) and 21 U.S.C. & 881(a)(6).

U.S.C. 88 1345 and 1355.

3. Venue lies iIn this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C.
8§ 1395(b).
4. Federal Rulle of Civil Procedure 56(a) authorizes the

granting of summary judgment “if the movant shows that there is no

4

2. This Court has jurisdiction over this matter pursuant to 28

genuine dispute as to any material fact and the movant is entitled to
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judgment as a matter of law.” The movant bears the initial burden of
establishing “the basis for its motion, and identifying those
portions of “the pleadings, depositions, answers to interrogatories
and admissions on file, together with the affidavits, 1T any,” which
it believes demonstrate the absence of a genuine i1ssue of material

fact.” Celotex Corp. v. Catrett, 477 U.S. 317, 323 (1986) (quoting

former Fed. R. Civ. P. 56(c)).

5. To meet its burden of production, the moving party must
either produce evidence negating an essential element of the
nonmoving party’s claim or defense or show that the nonmoving party
does not have enough evidence of an essential element to carry its

ultimate burden of persuasion at trial. Nissan Fire and Marine

Insurance Company, Ltd. v. Fritz Cos., 210 F.3d 1099, 1102 (9th Cir.

2000). Documents produced in discovery and admissions made during
discovery will support a summary judgment motion. Fed.R.Civ.P.
56(c) () (A) (“‘materials in the record” that will support summary
judgment include “documents” and “admissions™).

6. Once the moving party meets its initial burden of showing
there 1s no genuine issue of material fact, the opposing party has
the burden of producing competent evidence and cannot rely on mere

allegations or denials in the pleadings. Matsushita Electric

Industries Co. v. Zenith Radio Corp., 475 U.S. 574, 587 (1986).

There 1s no genuine issue for trial where the record taken as a whole
could not lead a rational trier of fact to find for the nonmoving
party.

7. In a suit or action brought under “any civil forfeiture
statute” for the civil forfeiture of any property, ‘“the burden of
proof is on the Government to establish, by a preponderance of the

5
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evidence that the property i1s subject to forfeiture . . . .7 18
U.S.C. 8 983(c)(1). To satisfy i1ts burden, the government may use
evidence ‘“gathered after the filing of the complaint for forfeiture
to establish, by a preponderance of the evidence that property is
subject to forfeiture . . . .7 18 U.S.C. 8 983(c)(2).

8. Federal law prohibits the operation of an unlicensed money
transmitting business. 18 U.S.C. § 1960. “Money transmitting” 1is
statutorily defined as “transferring funds on behalf of the public by
any and all means. . .” 18 U.S.C. 8 1960(b)(2) (emphasis added).

An “unlicensed money transmitting business” is statutorily defined as
a money transmitting business that “fails to comply with the money
transmitting business registration requirements under section 5330 of
[T]itle 31, United States Code, or regulations prescribed under such
section.” 18 U.S.C. § 1960(b)(1)(B). 31 U.S.C. 8 5330 in turn
defines a “money transmitting business” as one that
- provides a ‘“‘currency exchange” or “engages as a business in
the transmission of funds”;
- “@s required to file reports under 31 U.S.C. § 5313”; and
- “Is not a depository institution (as defined In section
5313(g).”
31 U.S.C. 8 5330(d)(1). In this regard, an “exchanger” Is “a person
engaged as a business in the exchange of virtual currency for real
currency, funds, or other virtual currency.” FINnCEN Guidance No.
FIN-2013-G001 (March 18, 2013) at p. 2 (“Virtual Currency Guidance™).
9. Treasury Department regulations issued pursuant to Section
5330 require money transmitting businesses to register with FinCEN.

United States v. E-Gold, Ltd., 550 F.Supp.2d 82, 96 (D.D.C. 2008);

accord United States v. Budovsky, No. 13cr368 (DCL), 2015 WL 5602853

6
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at *7 (S.D-N.Y Sept. 23, 2015). Congress enacted Section 5330’s
registration requirement to assist law enforcement agencies In their
efforts to “prevent . . . money transmitting businesses from engaging

in i1llegal activities.” E-Gold, supra, 550 F.Supp.2d at 96 (quoting

legislative history).

10. Scotese’s conduct falls well within the statutory
definitions of “money transmitting” set forth in both 18 U.S.C. 8
1960 and 31 U.S.C. 8§ 5330. First, his conduct falls within the
definition set forth iIn Section 1960 because Scotese caused Ochle to
transmit currency to him in exchange for Scotese’s transmission of
bitcoin to Ochle. Such conduct constitutes “transferring funds”
within the meaning of Section 1960(b)(2).

11. Scotese’s conduct also falls within the definition of
“money transmitting” set forth in 31 U.S.C. 8 5330. Specifically,

— Scotese provided a ‘““currency exchange” service within the
meaning of Section 5330(d)(1). For example, as discussed
above, he posted bitcoin exchange rates on one of his
websites. Kortum Decl. T 8 & Exh. “G”. He also stated that
“1 sell a lot of bitcoin in return for cash . . . . 1d.
10 & Exh. “1”’. Scotese also ‘““engaged as a business iIn the
transmission of funds” within the meaning of Section
5330(d) (1) (A). Under Section 5330”s implementing
regulations the element of “transmission” i1s satisfied by a
transfer to “another location or person by any means.” 31
C.F.R. 8 1010.100(fF)(5) (1) (emphasis added). FInCEN’s
Virtual Currency Guidance makes clear that when an exchanger
or administrator of virtual currency accepts real currency
from an individual and iIn exchange sends “value that

-
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substitutes for currency” (i.e., bitcoin) to the electronic
account of that individual, “transmission [has occurred] to
another location.” Virtual Currency Guidance at 4.
Furthermore, “[a]n administrator or exchanger [of virtual
currency] that . . . transmits . . . or . . . buys and sells
convertible virtual currency for any reason is a money
transmitter under FINCEN’s regulations . . . .” Id. at p.
3 (emphasis added).

- Scotese was “required to file reports under Section 5313~
within the meaning of Section 5330(d)(1)(B) because the
transaction at issue here involved more than $10,000.
Specifically, Scotese admitted that he received $15,000 from
Ochle, and 1n exchange sent bitcoin of comparable value to
Ochle. Exh. “A” at p. 5. Scotese’s transmission of bitcoin
to Ochle thus constituted a “money transmission” to another
location that Scotese was required to report pursuant to 31
U.S.C. 8 5313 (which requires the reporting of transactions
in excess of $10,000 pursuant to the implementing
regulations cited above). See 31 U.S.C. § 5330(d)(1)(B); 31
C.F.R. 1010.311.

- Scotese 1s not a “depository institution” within the meaning
of 31 U.S.C. 8 5330(d)(1)(C).

12. All three elements of Section 5330(d)(1) are satisfied
here, Scotese was required under 18 U.S.C. 8 1960 to register with
FINCEN. His failure to do so subjects the defendant currency to
forfeiture as proceeds of a transaction in violation of 18 U.S.C. §

1960. 18 U.S.C. 8 981(a)(1)(C); 50.44 Bitcoins, supra, 2016 WL

3049166 at *2. 18 U.S.C. 8§ 1960 i1s a ‘“general intent crime for which
8
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a defendant is liable 1f he knowingly operates a money transmitting

business.” United States v. Dimitrov, 546 F.3d 409, 413 (7th Cir.

2008). The government therefore need not prove that Scotese “knew
about the federal registration requirements . . . .” See 1d.; accord

United States v. Talebnejad, 460 F.3d 563, 568 (4th Cir. 2006). This

Court accordingly grants the government’s motion for summary
judgment.

13. To the extent that any conclusions of law contained herein
can be considered to be or are deemed to be Statements of
Uncontroverted Fact, they are incorporated by reference into the
Statements of Uncontroverted Fact.

IT 1S SO ORDERED.

Dated: , 2017

UNITED STATES DISTRICT JUDGE

Presented by:

EILEEN M. DECKER

United States Attorney

LAWRENCE S. MIDDLETON

Assistant United States Attorney
Chief, Criminal Division

STEVEN R. WELK

Assistant United States Attorney
Chief, Asset Forfeiture Section

/s/ Frank Kortum
FRANK D. KORTUM
Assistant United States Attorney
Asset Forfeiture Section

Attorneys for Plaintiff
United States of America
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PROOF OF SERVICE

I am over the age of 18 and not a party to the within action.
I am employed by the Office of the United States Attorney, Central
District of California. My business address is 312 North Spring
Street, 14th Floor, Los Angeles, California 90012.

On January 12, 2017, 1 served a copy of NOTICE OF RENEWED

MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT; and [proposed] STATEMENT OF

UNCONTROVERTED FACTS AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW on each person or

entity named below by enclosing a copy in an envelope addressed as
shown below and placing the envelope for collection and mailing on
the date and at the place shown below following our ordinary office

practices.

TO: David Scotese

Murrieta, CA

__X_ 1 am readily familiar with the practice of this office for

collection and processing correspondence for mailing. On the same
day that correspondence is placed for collection and mailing, it is
deposited in the ordinary course of business with the United States
Postal Service iIn a sealed envelope with postage fully prepaid.

I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the
United States of America that the foregoing is true and correct.

I declare that 1 am employed in the office of a member of the
bar of this court at whose direction the service was made.

Executed on: January 12, 2017 at Los Angeles, California.

/s/ Ann M. Eberhardy
ANN M. EBERHARDY
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